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ERV.904 / GIL.900
MASSACHUSETTS HISTORIC BRIDGE INVENTORY u\meAed 4/2/q\

Municipality: Ervm%/G«N District:_2

Street name/Rt. #:_OT 2. Mohawk Tral
Over ,
Street name/Rt. #: Comnec*‘culr River

Bridge key #:_Ol\2i6 OOD\O! Photo ##s:_14:i4, 40.1A-2A SA-\2A;78:35,71°8
Bridge plan #:_E-10-14/G-4-3

Common/historic name:_Yrench kmqud%e
[@)

Current owner:

413 (Ya)
UTM coordinates: AADHTO ra\m%: Gl (t-lo-86)
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National Register status (insert date) i Field rating: 3
Entered: Potential: MHC 8-24-88 ¥
: giodP 2.1
Eligible: Non-eligible: s
*
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Date built (source): 1a»\-32 ( K\emcrkr . Desian and Corrgruc\ton.- ; )

Date(s) rebuilt (source): L
Builder (source) H /ﬂQC\mhc - Ma\“c\na“ Co:p - ﬁu{bef‘- ;/f’_hm‘o—aoo Droo. Corg. - 50b. (K\emcrb

Designer (source): MDPW - Albert E. klewerl, W. ceo (f\a(\i)l

**************************************:*********************************

Structural type/materials: 4l ‘

steel | 3-opan conhnvous oPcmd(‘e\- broced deck acch. _Z-hm%ed. 'Porqbo\\c‘ lower chond)versb\igvh
arched opper chord, —Pra‘ﬂ'—* e OPODd(‘e\ brncm%). Ouperb\rudure Cixed u%n\ma* horizontal novement ax
boinh pers -- reachions wsere acdoall acked ofo the ‘"ou()e("o*f‘uc*ura ok conclomon of erechion. and the arch hmseb
were then ficed acanst Forther horzantal movement. Toth ends of o erstrocture bear o\; coller beamna
necte on abdiments (for \on%‘udma\ expansion /corﬁrnd on). Yertical Yas of ball meitmants to counter an

Peversa\ of verkical ceadion -- then Pmmam:)purpose was to hold dousn ends of the brdoe durmob*‘hg

can‘ Hever erec\\on proceso K-brace \a\crn\ oydtems bo\h Upper and lower. Crovo-Frame Dwaf}bracm&
1

Overall length:_782'  Deck width/layout: 47'3' ool-ook
Skew: . C¢-¢ end pin>. odt-out aboiments &0

Mzin unit, # spans: B lengths: ceolec 4¢Q' - 2 endo Gl
Approaches, # spans:___ - lengths: -

Plaque: 2 location: RI9C award, NE pulon. b lders ?\er on fence near NE ?C)\m

Alterations, unusual features, comments:

* a{ each panel ot Plate gunder {lcor beamo, T-beam Dgﬁngm, concrele slab deck. £ abotment
cenforced concrete cellulae ;) W. 3\wxmeq¥ reinforced concrete c&rx\n\ )hisfe. Rein - concrele ba\uc\rade--st\g:

%u;\rdrcx\ on abu\mem*o; wrovdpl- ron ornamented Booton-tuge apardca on bﬁd&e. 931000 ot abdment
ooter corners have omgle Neo- Classical d\’.\’a\\n’% (uy 'bor\i

At Deco mg\ueﬁce) cu'\mmaxmcs{q
Renawsance- o*zs\v. ‘nmp cnlcmdm‘d‘a sormounted baeo{{eo.

\C\'7‘7 P\noo - Dew wngot‘ced wncre&e deck, oteel moPec‘\or) quﬁbrm,


file:///ocoer
file://-/heir
http://er.ee
http://iofloer.ee
http://aooar.ee-

ERV.904 / GIL.900

Visual quality (bridge and setting): High_ X Average Low
Site integrity: Retained_X  Violated

| Eoesci'hiba b“idgﬁ( mmﬂ‘bb' above the Connecticot Rwer 1n a narrow , wecded aorae
0O S :
\;re hnk \)eR e ?nncc ot contluence withe the Hxﬂer*oT(\uer‘ and NM%M z hall mile below dhe landmack
" nc .\OOC,« ock.. arh\nts aread and a. mo‘d/rea*aurao{' Qomphsg have been CS m*o the woc !e& areas ak
e endo ot the bmdqg; a secondarny fown ~oad (HeadowRoad) olices nts the hillode Lnder 7 W | S—

History of bridge and site: wan,
The Frenchking Bridae wad concewed ao Par* of an MDPW pro i Yo rz\ocaj(e a pnh‘hcu\ar .-

hazardoos 7- mile ofrelch of the old Mohawk Tearl Hiahwau (57 2) between Eving and Greenfield. The
old rodte had wound ‘\'hc‘oug‘) the U\“'a%ea of Mllers ans asd Torners Talls on z couroe marked by olee
Aradeo, sharp corves, nacrow bmd%ea, ™ h‘-anﬂe forns, and a par of a‘-csrude ratlroad crassinas . The relocaled
ST B ryous suhe-aerihel boh wisees USRI T e Pmnc\Fa\ challenae sas the crosana aof the
PfECxP«*ooa Cor)ncc*acox_kwec oree near the French Kina Rock. (90 named bb French offcer of an Indian
SCOU*WS) party ducing the Fr‘elé\n and Indian Wars). A low-level crossina of the orae was condidered, bot was scon
dropped mfcwoh of a huth-leue\ croszna. The selection of a Pe shoeloasd o this hidh- level brdae was
baoced on %Q'Degs‘o desire to £it the brdoe nto this dramahc settin , while respondi Yo sudh factors 203 the
he‘&M and v‘ee‘)ﬂe':)o o; '“‘le %or‘%e'o ba&o; ‘*he ?r‘eocncc oC hpcit au'«la\o{e 'Q:ar- 'Cound \oND m‘ a?ew{ee‘ Be(ou
the aroond's -suggacg and The relatie nacrowness , rreaular h, boflomy | and swxf corrent oftbe MuEs
bere . The oracelol 3-opan arch deo‘&n which “c.w“ed takeo a vao‘a e ot the favorable «Coor\da}\of\ conditions
(Qn&\cﬂ( for an ar‘ch) while (* avoided ‘j«he cono*ruc"oq oﬁ e\*her Permaf)en* ero orfem‘nrn fa\ocumrk ‘f)

%e, cwer .n*se‘f. (the bmdae wao erec&ed the camlt\euer me:“x:d). Canntoac N wao bQ%JQ ) Qe()“emker ok

1921, dhe bmd&c wao comP'e}ed (c& a coot of 4 335.000) and OPened to travel on ember 10, 1922

The Amecican Ino’h‘u%e of Sheel Con&mc*m{) named +he French ki ,
oted bmd(& of %o class erected America 1n 1922 . i ns'bmd%g the moch bez‘“"‘f‘-’\

Sources: A\ber* E K\e\ner‘\. Ae "Dca«fgw and CQ\'?::\‘!‘UC:\LOG of dhe French ki Pridoe o0 {he Hohau.)kfrai\

%‘H' ' Hadke Aeroos dhe Conmechiony Rwee, Massachooctts Poston 703?25,,\ of Cunl Enayneers Journal
Mmf 931, 1935 XK G (Jome, 1923) o 117- 135, - S S
-K:Z‘q 5 © Amencan Iﬁo‘r‘u"eﬁdee‘ COQOXCUQ‘ 0, Inc, _szg'bndc\e; i928- 1948
g o
Olg ®-H.
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Summary statement of significance:

¥ Third: oldes! of 4 knoun oteel deck anch bmd&eg iy dhe MDPW .da\’a bace, and B*i‘-o\deo-& of 10 known
oteel acches of all *E’}?eo 0 4he dala bace. Has the 20d -‘ongo“ man-5pan \engh (460", second to
T-1-9' 547") among#he 12 oteel arch bmdaes, and dhe G -\oﬁffo‘* 3pan &mcﬂcba“ bridogws 1 dhe
MDPW data baoe.

O‘C 'iOSﬁeermg\m&Q(‘GO\’ as an unu'aua\ deudopmen& og -“'»e n\reud oncommaN D-> anfcah“wer—ard\ y
br‘&d$ ’répe. The French kmqud%e dilfers from 2 cantilever- arch ™ desian 10 that definde reachionswere
Jac\(ed oo do steelwork t)homz_cm‘a\ rezciions ek (y_-,gked wy it Yhe Gl prec; verhical reackions were
jacked n al both abuimen‘\o) at the wnclosion of e(‘ec}\on) re ou\lrm%m a Bmd%c which 1 :ytruc*umﬂt

con\\mwo actoss 4 eu‘)PorJta.
A visual landmack {rom aboue and below-, winner of o na*u:ma& auwsacd for \‘:’ bea ié
LOCq{ed 10 an acea O( oame ﬁgx“:\Cdnce n New En ando Qo\oma\ Hc#o ;

% UPDATE: Thio 1o now the 5% _oldeot of 7 Pooixwel sty b n:r‘ee.\ eb deck arches i the MDPW
dzta bose . and one of 1 knoun oteel cib arches of a0y cgs‘:\sumjuon o the dubabace.

Updated + 4a/e/q

Statement prepared by:_ 4. J Roper Dates: 2-\-88
& 1
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Field survey by:Z.)\ Roper, MDPW \\\e\mng’bmd%c Tpecizlist Date: $-27-84
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MDPW RECCMMENDATICN - NATIONAL REGISTER ELIGIBILITY

Municipality Street on : No.

Bridge: irvm%_’/Gl“ D1 2. Mo\ﬁawk Tr‘a(\'[COT\heCLCUJ(FR\\IQF E- \O-\‘\/Q'4'C\.

Historic evaluation

Significant becausez:

1) Unusual or unique type continuoos 50Fw)<wamrd-bnmcd Steel X
deck arch
or rare survivor of common type ____
2) Early example of type ' -
~3) Design - Valuable contribution to bridge technology X
4) Reﬁains integgity : X
5) Builder known and impoftant e ®
6) Bridge historically importaht to area _jg;
Not significant because:
1) Common type - , _
2) Post-1931  bulk qai-ez i
3) Design - no contribution to bridge technology _
4) Integrity lost because of: a) alterations .
| - b) disintegration I
5) Builder- unimportant or not known -
6) No known significance in area R
>< Potentially eligible Not eligible .
Not eligible individually, Conditionally not eligible;
but located review when 50 years old
Comments:
A lanamark bj(f‘UquPe in drama}tc r\a‘ural @ej«(n j A r\&k\oﬁa\ prize- coaner ao

fhe most beaotfol steel br’*«d@e of ths claos built (O\Der\ed) n 1922, In Qﬂ%neer\m(&\ermo,
an unuoual var\ajnor) on A very ONCOMMAN a‘mc‘ucad 46\32. - dhe oleel rib deck arch. One
ot on\éﬂ steel deck arches 1n (‘ﬂ\e. MDPW d«JAa baose .

29 Jan 988 2. Jnkover\ MDPW Histemss 'bﬁc\oge ZDPQC@LO&
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BRIDGES PREVIOUSLY REVIEWED BY M.H.C. -- CONCURRENCE REAFFIRMED

Municipality On/Over Br. Dept. No.
Bridge: EW\O%/G\\\ ST &/Conﬁeg&\cux R, E-\Q’Hlﬁ"\-q

has previously been reviewed by the Massachusetts Historical Commission and

was determined to be: Plotbiall, Elicble
O 0 W

on a-va-gn .

After a review of all known bridges of comparable structural type identified
in the M.D.P.W. statewide computerized database, the M.D.P.W. now reaffirms

its concurrence with that initial determination.

Summary statement of significance:

A landmack a‘rmdu ce i & drama‘\\c oe*&\m:% an uﬁu:)ol\ \)aﬁak\gw (uh\cboe ey
4

T"\Dox\d\uoe"“b) o0 2 uerB VHCOMMN o mc or

Statement prepared by: DI Ropar.. FIDPW R\j&cﬂc‘bmde\e f)pqcm(@x
1 o
Date: 4[2[‘N
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MHC INVENTORY CONTINUATION SHEET -- MHC Inventory scanning project, 2008 - 2012 (E-10-14 / G-4-9) MACRIS No. /000!

From South

South face, west abutment, from West

From South

All photographs: 31 Oct. 1986
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MHC INVENTORY CONTINUATION SHEET -- MHC Inventory scanning project, 2008 - 2012 (E-10-14 / G-4-9) MACRIS No.

From southeast (13 Sept 1985)

On N rail near NE pylon (13 Sep 1985) From northwest (13 Sept 1985)
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MHC INVENTORY FORM CONTINUATION SHEET
MHC Inventory scanning project, 2008-2011

(E-10-14 / G-4-9) MACRIS No.

AL,

~avinv,
St

From ouheast lon, from S

gt ﬁ

Northern arch, eastern hinge and abut,. f W
All photographs: 13 Sept. 1985

'NE end pylon, from S



MHC INVENTORY FORM CONTINUATION SHEET (E-10-14 / G-4-9) MACRISNo.  CRV-904/
MHC Inventory scanning project, 2008-2011 GIL.900

& R i

Western hinge, southern arch, from SW Bearing and anchor at western end of southern line
of arches

Bearing and anchor at western end of southern line
of arches

All photographs: 13 Sept. 1985



MHC INVENTORY FORM CONTINUATION SHEET --  (E-10-14 / G-4-9) MACRISNo.  CRV-904/
MHC Inventory scanning project, 2008-2011 GIL.900

§: &%

On NE end pylon (13 Sept 1985)



MHC INVENTORY FORM CONTINUATION SHEET --
MHC Inventory scanning project, 2008-2011
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Historic
bridge in
W. Mass.

restored

Freneh King Bridge
given $5.4m facelift

By B.J. Roche
SPECIAL TO THE GLOBE

GILL - Jobs were scarce in 1932,
but Adrian Savage, then 25, got
lucky. He went to work for 35 cents
an hour hauling drinking water from
the banks of the Connecticut River,
135 feet up to workers building the
French King Bridge.

“It was the Depression and a lot
of men went to work on that bridge
to make a living,” he recalled. “In
those days, you were lucky if you got
up to $1 an hour.”

Savage went on to other jobs and
other loves, including his late wife,
Lynne, and the cherry-red 1992
Honda CRX he bought this summer
for his 85th birthday. But Savage,
who lives in Millers Falls, remains
the unofficial historian of the bridge,
and he’ll be among those celebrating
its $5.4 million renovation and re-
dedication on Sunday.

“The beauty of this bridge is
what makes it,” he said. “You can go
back in time here. When I go over it,
I can envision the canoes carrying:
the French and Indians down the
Connecticut, the river paddleboats
and the log drives that went from
the lakes in New Hampshire and
Vermont down to the mills in Turn-
ers Falls. There were terrific log
drives on that river years and years
ago.”

One of western Massachusetts’
better known landmarks, the French
King Bridge on Route 2 between Er-
ving and Gill established a crucial
link in east-west transportation in
the state. It cost $385,000 to build,
and upon its completion in 1932, won
a national award from the American
Institute of Steel Construction for
the beauty and efficiency of its con-
struction.

(E-10-14 / G-4-9)

Present-day foliage watchers
treasure the steel deck arch bridge
for its views of the river, farmland,
forest .and mountains, which have
been preserved largely by the state
and Northeast Utilities, owner of the
Northfield Mountain Pumped Stor-
age Station just north of the bridge.

The bridge also has historical in-
terest. A quarter mile north, jutting
out of the middle of the river, is the
famous French King Rock, which
served as a landmark in the 1750s
for French and Indian scouting par-
ties, who named it in honor of King
Louis XIV of France.

Residents and elected officials
have scheduled a two-day celebra-
tion, capped by a Sunday parade and

ceremony to rededicate the bridge in |

honor of the late congressman Silvio
0. Conte. They will place a plaque in
a rest area on the Erving side of the
bridge.

For area officials, the event will
mark the end of a long struggle to
see the bridge restored to its former
glory. In the 1980s, the bridge began
to fall apart, said Gill Selectman Pa-
tricia Haigis.

“It was terrible,” Haigis said.
“The concrete had fallen off the steel
supporting beams on both sides of
the bridge. It was an accident wait-
ing to happen.”

Haigis and Erving Selectman

. Leo Parent sent letters to state offi-

cials, and Parent made many trips to
Boston, “but most of what we were
saying fell on deaf ears,” Haigis said.

In 1989 Haigis and Parent posed

" for pictures on the bridge, showing
" its deterioriation. Soon after they ap-
" peared in the area newpapers, Gov.

Dukakis announced funding for a

- 2Vs-year renovation project, much of

which was paid for with federal
funds.
“Conte nudged it along,” Haigis

" gaid. “He found out there was a need
*ih his district, and he got a lot done

for us.”

Corinne Conte, the congress-
man’s widow, will lead the parade,
which will begin at 12:30 at the
French King Bowling Center on

_ Route 2 in Millers Falls.

Gov. Joseph B. Ely was among

 the 15,000 people on hand for the

dedication ceremonies on Sept. 10,
1932. Gov. Weld and other state offi-
cials have declined the invitation to
the rededication, Haigis said.

“I think it’s a sad state of affairs
that they can’t make a commitment
to attend,” she said. “We wanted to

~ show them that there’s another part

of the state beyond Worcester.”

MACRIS No.

ERV.904 /
GIL.900
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| PRILE
’ CBRIDGES

1928—-1938

@B

AMERICAN'INSTITUTE of STEEL CONSTRQCTION, Inc.
One Hundred One Park Avenue - New York, N. V.




BEAUTIFUL BRIDGES

. STEEL BRIDGES

are not only efficient and economical; they can be beautiful. To demonstrate
the aesthetics of bridges, the American Institute of Steel Construction estab-
lished in 1928 an annual award. The prize winning bridges are decorated
with stainless steel plaques designating them as the most beautiful con-
structed during the year. Since this award was initiated, a sincere and
growing interest in the architectural excellence of steel ‘bridges has been
noticeable. This booklet is now published for the purpose of recording this

growth in interest and to commemorate the achievements so {ar made.

These beautiful bridges have been selected by Juries of Award, com-

posed of leading Consulting Engineers and Architects. The American Insti-
s

tute of Steel Construction has but donated the prizes and believes that it is

helping to render a distinct public service in being permitted to play that

part in this movement towards improving bridge design in the United States.

June, 1939.

ERV.904 / GIL.900
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FIRST PLACE—1928 AWARD
SIXTH STREET BRIDGE-Pittsburgh, Pa.; Engineer, V. R. Covell, Chief

Engineer of Bridges; Fabricators, American Bridge Co.; Owner, Allegheny
County; Completed in 1928; Span length: main span, 442 ft,, 1 in.; 2 side
spans of 221 ft.
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FIRST PLACE—;CLASS A—1929 AWARD

MOUNT HOPE BRIDGE—Across Mount Hope Bay be-
tween Bristol and Portsmouth, R. L; Total Cost, $4,
250.000; Engineers, Robinson and Steinman; Fabricators,
McClintic-Marshall Company; Owner, Mount Hope
Bridge Company; Completed October 24, 1929,

FIRST PLACE—CLASS B—1929 AWARD

MOUNT PLEASANT BRIDGE—Over N. Y. Central R.R.
Harlem Division, Mt. Pleasant, N. Y.; Total Cost, under
$200,000; Engineer, Jay Downer, Chief Engineer, West-
chester County Park Commission; Fabricators, Bethlehem
Steel Company; Owner, Westchester County Park Com-
mission; Completed March, 1929,

\

HONORABLE -MENTION—CLASS A—1929 AWARD

LAKE CHAMPLAIN BRIDGE—Across Lake Champlain
about 35 miles from the southerly end of the Lake and 70
miles from the Canadian boundary, between Crown Point
in the Town of Crown Point, New York, and Chimney Point
in the Town of Addison, Vermont; Construction Cost,
$967,816.18; Engineers, Fay, Spofiord and Thorndike, En-
gineers to the Lake Champlain Bridge Commission; Fabri-
cators, American Bridge Company; Ownrer, Lake Cham.
plain Bridge Commission; Completed for trafic, August
26. 1929; Span length: continuous spans of 290 ft., 434 ft.,
and 290 ft. .
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1930 - S B

FIRST PLACE—CLASS A-;-
1930 AWARD

WABASH AVENUE BRIDGE—
Over Chicago River; Total Cost,
§1.750.000; Engineers. Bureau of
Engineering, City of Chicago;
Fabricators, American Bridge
Company; Owner, City of Chica-
go; Completed December 20,
1930; Span length, 239 ft.

RARNNAREARRC A

FIRST HONORABLE MENTION—CLASS A—
1930 AWARD

MID-HUDSON BRIDGE — Over the Hudson River
between the City of Poughkeepsie, Dutchess County,
N. Y., and the Hamlet of Highland, Ulster County,
N. Y.; Total Cost, $7,000,000; Engineers, Modjeski
and Moran; Fabricators, American Bridge Company;
Owner, State of New York; .Completed August 25,
1930; Span length: suspension, 1500 ft.; approaches,
750 ft. each. :

HONORABLE MENTION—CLASS C—1930 AWARD

LACHINE BRIDGE—Across the Old Lachine Canal at
18th Ave.. Lachine, Canada; Total Cost $3,100; Engi-
neer, R. Dorion, City Engineer; Fabricators. The Do-
minion Bridge Co.. Limited; Owner, City of Lachine;
Completed October 15, 1930; Span Length: 47 ft.

FIRST PLACE—CLASS C—
1930 AWARD

DELTON BRIDGE-Town of
Delton, Sauk County, Wiscon-
sin; Total Cost, $51.000 (ap-
proximately); Engineers,
Wisconsin State Highway Com-
mission; Fabricators, Lakeside
Bridge & Steel Co.; Owner, =
Wisconsin State Highway Com-
mission; Completed in 1930;
Span length, 2 spans of 218 ft.
each.
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FIRST PLACE—CLASS A—1931 AWARD

BAYONNE BRIDGE—Across the Kill van Kull between
Bavonne, N. J.. and Port Richmend. Staten Island. N. Y.
Total Cost. $16.000.000; Engineer. 0. H. Ammann;
Chief Engineer. The Port of New York Authority; Fab-
ricators. American Bridge Company; Owner. The Port
of New York Authority; Completed November 15, 1931;
Span length, 1675 ft.

FIRST PLACE—CLASS B-—1931 AWARD

WALDO-HANCOCK SUSPENSION BRIDGE-Over Penobscot
River, Bucksport, Maine; Total Cost, $846,000; Engineers, Rob-
inson & Steinman; Fabricators, American Bridge Company;

Owner, State of Maine; Completed November 16, 1931; Sypau
length, 800 ft.

FIRST PLACE—CLASS C—1931 AWARD

WEST STEWARTSTOWN BRIDGE — Over
Connecticut River. West Stewartstown. N. H.;
Total Cost. $45.072.87; Engineers. New Hamp-
chire State Highway Department; Fabricators,
American Bridge Company; Completed in
1931; Span length: 136 ft. main arch span.
232 ft. entire overall length.

»
o
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HONORABLE MENTION—CLASS A—1931 AWARD

MAUMEE RIVER SUSPENSION BRIDGE—Toledo, Ohio; Total Cost, $3,000,000; Consulting Engi-
neers, Waddell & Hardesty; Consulting Architects, Cass Gilbert, Inc.; Fabricators, McClintic-Marshall
Corporation; Owner, City of Toledo; Completed November, 1931; Span length—main span, 785 ft. c.c. of .
towers; 2 side spans of 203 ft. 9 in, , :

HONORABLE MENTION—CLASS B— -
1931 AWARD

CROTON LAKE BRIDGE — Croton Lake,
N.Y.; Total Cost, $821.000; Engineers, How-
ard R. Baird, Consulting Engineer under the
general direction of Jay Downer, Chief Engi-
neer. Westchester County Park Commission;
Fabricators. The Mount Vernon Bridge
~ Company; Completed November 4, 1931;
. Span'{]ength, 750 ft.

H
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. HONORABLE MENTION—CLASS C—1931 AWARD - :
AFTON OVERHEAD BRIDGE—Over C. B. & (. Railroad in the town of Afton, Union County, Iowa;
Total Cost, $27,047.09; Engineers, Iowa State Highway Commission; Fabricators, American Bridge
Company; Owner, State of Iowa; Completed August 20, 1931; Span length—Main span, 108 ft. c.c. of
pinsy overall length, 218 {t. -
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FIRST PLACE—CLASS A-—1932 AWARD

PULASKI SKYWAY—Crossings of Hackensack and Passaic Rivers, Hudson County,
N. I.; Total Cost. $4,100.000; Engineer, Jacob L. Bauer. State Highway Engineer;
Fabricators, McClintic-Marshall Corporation; Owner, State of New Jersey; Com-
pleted November 24, 1932; Span length: channel spans, 550 fr.

FIRST PLACE—CLASS B—1932 AWARD
FRENCH KING BRIDGE—Towns of Erving and Gill, State of Massachusetts,

Mohawk Trail, Route 2. over Connecticut River about six miles east of Greenfield,
Mass.; Total Cost, $385.000 (exclusive of property damages and approaches) ; Engi-
neers, A. W. Dean, Chief Engineer; G. E. Harkness, Bridge Engineer, Massachusetts
Department of Public Works; Fabricators, McClintic-Marshall Corporation ; Owner,
Commonwealth of Massachusetts; Opened to travel September 10, 1932; Span: 460
{i. center to center pins of center span; 782 ft. center to center of end pins; 890 ft.
out to out of abutments.

FIRST PLACE—CLASS C—
1932 AWARD

- BRYAN BRIDGE—Valentine. Ne-
p braska. over the Niobrara River,
Federal Highway No. 20; Total
Cost, $51,630.08 (contract price);
Engineer, Nebraska Department of
Public Works, J. G. Mason. Bridge
Engineer; Joseph Sorkin. Designer;
Fabricators, Paxton & Vierling Iron
Works: Owner, State of Nebraska: -
Completed September 30, 1932;
Span length: 145 {t. 2% in. central
cantilever arch span; anchor arm
spans, 72 1. each,




piers.

HONORABLE MENTION—CLASS C—
1932 AWARD

CANTERBURY STREET BRIDGE OVER

MORTON STREET — Forest Hills, Boston, . .

Mass.; Total Cost, $64,178; Engineers. J. R.
Warcester & Co.; Fabricators. American Bridge
Company; Opened to traffic November, 1932;
Span length: 92 ft. 41% in. c.c. pins.

ERV.904 / GIL.900

-1932-

HONORABLE MENTION—CLASS A—1932 AWARD

LORAIN.CARNEGIE BRIDGE-Cleveland. Ohio; Total
Cost, §4,750.000; Engineers, F. R. Williams, County Engi-
neer. A. M. Felgate, Bridge Engineer for Cuyahoga Coun-
ty; Wilbur J. Watson, Consulting and Designing Engineer;
Fabricator, Mount Vernon Bridge Company; Owner, Cuya-
hoga County; Completed December 3, 1932; Span length:
Individual spans vary from 132 fi. to 299 ft.; length of
bridge, 5.865 ft. :

HONORABLE MENTION—CLASS B—1932 AWARD .

YORK STREET HIGH LEVEL BRIDGE—Hamilton. Ont., Canada; Total Cost, .
$350,000; Engineers, James, Proctor & Redfern, Ltd.; Fabricators, Hamilton Bridge
Company; Owner, City of Hamilton; Completed in 1932; Span length: 220 ft. c.c.

-

v
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FIRST PLACE—CLASS A—1933 AWARD
CEDAR STREET BRIDGE—Illinois River at Cedar Street, Peoria, Illinois; Total

Cost, $1.200,000; Engineers, Strauss Engineering Corporation; Fabricators. Mc-
Clintic-Marshall Corporation; Owner, City of Peoria; Completed January 6, 1933;

Span length: main cantilever, 296 ft.; central span with two ancher arms,

FIRST PLACE—CLASS B—1933 AWARD -

SHARK RIVER BRIDGE—Between F St., Belmar, and Main St., Avon, N.J.; Total
Cost, $413,320.45; Engineer, Morris Goodkind, Bridge Engineer, State of New

. Jersey, State Highway Commission; Fabricators, American Bridge Company;
Owner, State of New Jersey Highway Commission; Completed October 12, 1933;
Spans: 9 spans, 83 ft., plus 1 bascule span, 110 ft.—total length, 853 ft.

FIRST PLACE—CLASS C—1933 AWARD

DR. JOHN D. McLOUGHLIN BRIDGE—Over the Clackamas River in Clackamas
County, Oregon, on the Oregon City-East Portland Super Highway; Total Cost,.
$161,570.16; Engineers, The Oregon State Highway Department; Fabricators, Poole
& McGonigle; Owner, Oregon Siate Highway Commission; Completed June 30,
1933; Span length: 240 ft. main span, flanked by spans of 140 it. on either side;
Total length, 720 1. :

204 1t. 9 in.

-
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“HONORABLE RIENTION;CLASS A—1933 AWARD

SOUTH TENTH STREET BRIDGE~Pittsburgh, Pa., over the Monongahela River;

Total Cost. $1,547.000 (exclusive of property rights) ; Engineer, V. R. Covell, Chief
Engineer, Bureau of Bridges, Department of Public Works, Allegheny County;
Fabricators, American Bridge Company; Owner, County of Allegheny, Pa.; Date
Completed, February 11, 1933; Spans: Main span, 725 ft.; 2 side spans, 275 ft.;
Total length, 1175 ft.

. A3
s

HONORABLE MENTION—CLASS B—1933 AWARD

SHREWSBURY RIVER BRIDGE—Route No. 36 between Highlands, N. J., and
Seabright, N. J.; Total Cost, $647,548.34; Engineer, Morris ‘Goodkind, Bridge
Engineer, New Jersey State Highway Commission; Fabricators, American Bridge
Company; Owner, New Jersey State Highway Commission; Completed September
15. 1933 ; Spans: 1 bascule span of 140 ft. and 10 deck girder spans; Total length,

1242 fi.

HONORABLE MENTION—
CLASS C—1933 AWARD

PORT CLINTON BRIDGE—Over
Portage River at Port Clinton, Ot-
tawa County. Ohio, State Route
No. 2: Total Cost, $175.825.18
(bridge proper); Engineer. J. R.
Burkey. Chief Engineer of Bridges.
Department of Highways. State of
Ohio; Fabricators. The R. C. Ma-
_ hon Company; Owner. State of

y ~ Ohio. Department of Highways;
@ Completed August 5, 1933; Span
i length: 80 ft. main span, 2 ap-

proach spans 60 ft. each.
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FIRST PLACE—CLASS A—1934 AWARD

BOURNE BRIDGE—Across Cape Cod Canal in the Town of Bourne, Mass.; Total Cost, $1,610,000;
Engineers, Fay, Spofford and Thorndike; Consulting Architects, Cram and Ferguson; Fabricators,
American Bridge Company; Owner, U. S. Government; Completed December 4, 1934; Main spans:
396 f{t., 616 ft., and 396 ft.

|
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FIRST PLACE—CLASS C—1934 AWARD

DOUGLAS COUNTY BRIDGE No. 667 — Grade
Separation Road 44 and Dodge Arterial Highway,
Nebraska; Total Cost, $20,000; Engineer, Guy Dor-
sey, Assistant County Surveyor; Fabricator, Omaha
Steel Works; Owner, Douglas County, Nebraska;
Completed December 13. 1934; Span length: Arch,
72 1., overall length of bridge, 123 f1.
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HONORABLE MENTION—CLASS B—1934 AWARD

L
= S WOODWARD AVENUE GRADE SEPARATION—Michigan Central and Grand Trunk R. R. Crossing,
' Woodward Ave., Detroit, Michigan; Total Cost, $400,000; Engineers, Michigan Central (Superstructure),
sl Grand Trunk Western (Substructure), assisted by Highway Engineers; Fabricator, American Bridge
£ . Company; Owner, State of Michigan; Completed November 1, 1934; Span length: 90 ft,, disregarding
S sidewalk bridging.
51 :
2

HONORABLE MENTION—CLASS C—1934 AWARD .

EEL RIVER BRIDGE AT SMITH POINT—Humboldt

County, California, State Highway Roeute. 1, U. S. Route

101, about 50 miles south of Eureka; Total Cost, - :
$110,000; Engineer, F. W. Panhorst, Acting Bridge : -
Engineer, State of California; Constructor, Neves and

Harp, Santa Clara, Calif.; Fabricator, Pacific Coast ‘ . .
Steel Corporation; Owner, State of California; Com- . . : . U .
pleted December 29, 1934; Span length: 2—100 fi. end
spans; 2-—120 ft. center spans; Total length, 440 ft.,
designed continuous over supports.
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FIRST PLACE—CLASS A—1935 AWARD

NORTH GRAND ISLAND BRIDGE—Over the Niagara River, extending from the City of Niagara
Falls, Niagara County, N. Y., to Buckhorn Island at the north end of Grand Island, Erie County, N.Y.:
Total Cost, $1,296.639.84; Engineers: Built under the direction of Frederick S. Greene, Chief Engineer
of the Niagara Frontier Bridge Commission and Superintendent of Public Works of the State of New
York. Plans for the superstructure of the river spans prepared by Waddell & Hardesty and George C.
Diehl, Inc., Consulting Engineers of the Commission; Fabricators, Jones & Laughlin Steel Corpora-
tion and Fort Pitt Bridge Works; Owner, Niagara Frontier Bridge Commission; Completed July 15,
1935; Span Lengths: 1-150 ft., 2—-200 ft., 2—250 ft., 2-300 ft., 2—350 ft., 2—400 ft., 1~500 ft., and
3—-100 ft. -

FIRST PLACE—CLASS B—1935 AWARD

LORAIN ROAD VIADUCT—On Lorain Road, State
Route 10, across Rocky River Valley, located par-
tially in Cleveland and partially in the Village of
Fairview, Cuyahoga County, Ohio; Total Cost, $496-
472.06 (including -approaches and landscaping) ;
Engineers: Ohio Department of Highways, John
Jaster, Jr., Director; Bureau of Bridges, J. R. Burkey,
Chief Engineer; W. H. Rabe, Chief Designing Engi-
neer; D. H. Overman, Principal Designing Engineer
for the project; Fabricators, Fort Pitt Bridge Works;
Owner, Cuyahoga County; Date Completed, Decem-
ber, 1935; Span Lengths: Two central arches 256 ft.
center to center of piers; adjacent arch, either side,
236.7 ft. center of piers; west approach spans, four
deck girder spans at 38.6 ft. center to center; east
approach span, deck girder, 57.8 ft. center to center;
overall Jength of structure, 1260.9 ft.

IO N WA L R 2GR
-

HONORABLE MENTION—CLASS A-——
1935- AWARD

SAGAMORE BRIDGE—Across Cape Cod Canal
in the Town of Bourne, Mass.; Total Cost, 81.-
400,000 (approximate) ; Engineers, Fay, Spoflord
and Thorndike; Fabricators, American Bridge
I ; m Company (superstructure) ; Owner, U. 5. Gov-.
e fito¥ : g I ernment; Date Completed June 21, 1935; Span

- lengths: 1 continuous 3.span structure. length of
center span 616 ft. center to center with two side
spans each 396 ft.
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HONORABLE MENTION— .
CLASS B—1935 AWARD-

TOWER BRIDGE~Sacramento, Cali-
{ornia, across Sacramento River be-
tween Sacramento and Yolo Counties;
Total Cost, $975,689.34; Engineers,
C. H. Purcell, State Highway Engi-
neer; F. W. Panhorst, Acting Bridge
Engineer; Fabricators, Consolidated
Steel Corporation, Lid.; Owner, State
of California, Department of Public
Works, Division of Highways; Date
Opened to Traffic, December 31,
1935; Span lengths: Lift span, 209
ft. 6 in; 167 ft. 5 in.; 30 ft. 9 in.;
192 ft. 6 in.; 4 spans at 34 ft. 5 in,,
34 ft., 34 fr., and 35 ft. Total length
of bridge, 738 ft.

FIRST PLACE—CLASS C—1935 AWARD

MORTIMER E. COOLEY BRIDGE—On M-55 crossing
the S. Branch of the Manistee River 3 miles east of
Wellston, Ohio; Total Cost $179,683.88 (exclusive of
plans and enomeermg) Engineers, Michigan State
Highway Department; Fabrlcalors, W:sconsm Bridge
& Iron Co.: Owner, Michigan State Highway Depart-
ment; Date Completed, August 28, 1935—opened to
traffic, September 15, 1935; Span lengths: 1 at 300 ft,,
2 at 125 ft.

HONORABLE MENTION—CLASS C—1935 AWARD

— TAMM AVENUE SEPARATION-Route 40, St. Louis, Mo.; Total Cost, $33,406.48; Engi-
neer, T. H. Cutler, Chief Engineer, Missouri State Highway Department; Fabricators, Stupp
Lo Bros. Bridge & Iron Company; Owner, Missouri State Highway Department; Date Com-
R pleted, October 31. 1935—~opened to traffic, December 10, 1935; Span length, 66 ft.
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FIRST PLACE—CLASS A—1936 AWARD

EAST RIVER CROSSING, THE TRIBOROUGH BRIDGE—New York City; Total Cost, $8.500.000;
Engineers: The Triborough Bridge Authority, O. H. Ammann, Chief Engineer; Allston Dana, Engi-
neer of Design; Leon S. Moisseifl, Consulting Engineer; Aymar Embury II, Architect; Fabricators,
Bethlehem Steel Company, American Bridge Company and American Locomotive Company; Owner,
The Triborough Bridge Authority; Date Opened to Traffic, July 11, 1936; Span length: 1380 ft.,

width 113 ft,

FIRST PLACE—CLASS B—
1936 AWARD

HURRICANE DECK BRIDGE
—Across Sage Arm of the Lake
of the Ozarks on Missouri Route
No. 5, Camden County, Missouri,
between Versailles and Camden-
ton; Total Cost, $656,204.89;
Engineers, Sverdrup & Parcel;
Fabricators, Stupp Bros. Bridge
& Iron Company fabricated the
structural steel and sublet the
erection to the Wisconsin Bridge
& Iron Company; Owner, Cam-
den County, Missouri; Date
Opened to Traffic, December 28,
1936; Span lengths: 3 central
spans each 464 ft., 2 side spans
each 377 ft.

HONORABLE MENTION-—
CLASS A—1936 AWARD

HENRY HUDSON BRIDGE-
Over Harlem River at Spuyten
Duyvil, New York City; Total
Cost, 81,200,000; Engineers, Madi-
gan & Hyland, Consulting and
Supervising Engineers; Robinson
& Steinman, Consulting Engineers
on Design; Aymar Embury I,
Consulting Architect; Fabricators,
American Bridge Company; Own-
er, Henry Hudson Bridge Author-
ity; Date Completed and Opened
to Traffic, December 11, 1936;
Span lengths: 1 arch span 800 ft.;
2 tower spans, 45 ft.; 10 plate
girder spans, each 60 ft.
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HONORABLE MENTION—
CLASS A—1936 AWARD

WEST BAY CROSSING, SAN -
FRANCISCO - OAKLAND BAY
BRIDGE~—San Francisco Harbor,
California; Total Cost, $77,200,000
(estimated) ; Engineer, Charles
H. Purcell. Chief Engineer. De-
partment of Public Works, State
of California; Fabricators, Colum-
bia Steel Company; Owner, Cali-
fornia Toll Bridge Authority of
the State of California; Date
Completed, November 11, 1936;
Opened to Traffic, November 12,
1936; Span lengths: 1 approach
span 863 ft.; 2 main spans each
2310 ft.; 4 side spans each 1160 ft.

HONORABLE MENTION—
... CLASS A—1936 AWARD

FORE RIVER BRIDGE—Between
Quincy and Weymouth, Mass.;
Total Cost, $2,400,000 (approxi-
mately) ; Engineers, designed and
built by the Massachusetts De-
partment of Public Works under
the direction of George H. De-
Tano, Chief Engineer, and George
E. Harkness, Bridge. Engineer;
Desmond & Lord, Consulting Ar-
chitects; Fabricators, Bethlehem
- Steel Company; Owner, Common-
wealth of Massachusetts; Date
Completed, October, 1936;
- 7.~ Opened to Traffic, May 23, 1936;
. Span lengths: 1-212 {t.-6 in. truss
span (river span) ; 3—90 ft. girder
spans (approach spans); 1-219
ft. twin bascule span; Total length,
2116 f1. - - .

FIRST PLACE—CLASS C—
- 1936 AWARD

ASTORIA BOULEVARD OVER
GRAND CENTRAL PARKWAY
EXTENSION ~ Queens County,
New York City; Total Cost, §114,.
000; Engineers, Long Island State
Park Commission and Triborough
Bridge Authority; Fabricators,
American Bridge Company; Own-
er, Department of Parks, New
York City; Date Opened to Traf-
fic, July 11, 1936; Span length:
On skew 92 {t.; Square 74 ft. 8 in.

PREITTpEWI
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FIRST PLACE—CLASS A—1937 AWARD

GOLDEN GATE BRIDGE — From Fort Point to Lime Point across the Golden Gate at San
Francisco, California; Total Cost, $27.000,000 (construction cost) ; Engineers, Joseph B. Strauss,
Chief Engineer; O. H. Ammann, L. S, Moisseiff and Charles Derleth, Jr.. Consulting Engineers;
Fabricators, Bethlehem Steel Company; Owners. Golden Gate Bridge and Highway District; Date
Completed, May 26, 1937; Opened to Traffic, May 27, 1937; Span length: Main span, 4200 ft.
c-c of towers; Total length, 9200 ft.

H :
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% FIRST PLACE—CLASS B—1937 AWARD
LITTLE HELL GATE, LOW LEVEL BRIDGE—Between Randall’s Island and Ward’s Island,

New York City; Total Cost, $530,000; Engineers, 0. H. Ammann. Chief Engineer; Allston Dana,
Engineer of Design; Aymar Embury 11, Architect; Fabricators, American Bridge Company;
Owners, The Triborough Bridge Authority; Date Completed, June 30, 1937; Opened to Trafhic,

May 15, 1937; Span lengths: 3 spans 167 fr., 280 fi., 242 ft.

FIRST PLACE—CLASS C—1937 AWARD
CHESTERFIELD-BRATTLEBORO BRIDGE-

Over Connecticut River on Route 9; Total Cost,
$198.1425.72; Engineers. John W. Childs, Bridge
Engineer, Harold E. Langley, Designing Engi-
neer, New Hampshire State Highway Depart-
ment: Fabricators. Bethlehem Steel Company;
Owners. States -of New Hampshire and Ver-
mont: Date Completed. August 2. 1937 Opened
to Traffic. July 31. 1937; Span length. 425 f1.
c-¢ pins.
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FIRST PLACE—MOVABLE BRIDGES—
1937 AWARD

MARINE PARKWAY BRIDGE — Over Rock-
away Inlet, New York City; Total Cost, $3,750,-
000; Engineers: Madigan-Hyland, Consulting
and Supervising Engineers on Entire Project;
Waddell & Hardesty, Consulting Engineers on
Design of Lift and Flanking Spans; Robinson
& Steinman, Consulting Engineers on Design of
Deck Spans; Aymar Embury II, Consulting
Architect; Fabricators and Erectors, American
Bridge Company; Owners, Marine Parkway Au-
thority; Date Completed and Opened to Trafhic,
July 3. 1937; Span length, lift span, 540 it.

Mclaughlin Photo Service
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HONORABLE MENTION—MOVABLE BRIDGES—1937 AWARD

o . SHARK RIVER BRIDGE—Ocean Avenue, between Belmar and Avon, Monmouth County, New
i - Jersey: Total Cost, $324,982.68; Engineers, Ash-Howard-Needles & Tammen, and Morris Good-
kind acting as Associate Consultants; Fabricators, Virginia Bridge Company, structural steel;
American Bridge Company, machinery; Owners, Board of Chosen Freeholders of Monmouth -

% County, New Jersey; Date Completed and Opened to Traffic, May 29, 1937; Span lengths: Double
) . leaf simple trunnion bascule span 112 ft. c-c of frunnions, and two flanking spans each 68 ft. long;
[ Total length, 338 ft. 8 in. ;

ay, I o5
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HONORABLE MENTION—CLASS B—1937 AWARD .

f\:OR'I:HERN BOULEVARD BRIDGE OVER INTRAMURAL DRIVE—Flushing Meadow Park, .
% New York City; Total Cost, $448,376; Engineers, Madigan-Hyland; Fabricators, American Bridge
Company; Owners, Department of Parks, City of New York; Date Completed, September 10,
1937; Opened to Traffic, June 8, 1937; Span lengths: 7 spans at 49.5 ft. c-c of columns.
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FIRST PLACE—CLASS A—1938 AWARD

MIDDLETOWN-PORTLAND BRIDGE—)id-
dletown. Connecticut; Total Cost. 83.000.000;
Engineers: Designed by William G. Grove
under the direction of L. G. Sumner. Engineer
of Bridges and Structures, Connecticut State
Highway Department: E. C. Welden. Deputy
Highway Commissioner; William J. Cox. State
Highway Commissioner; Fabricators, Bethle-
hem Steel Company: Owner, State of Connec-
ticut; Date Completed. July, 1938: Opened to
Trafhic. August 6. 1938; Span lengths: 2 steel
arches 600 {t. each; Total length, 3400 ft.

g

NS

FIRST PLACE—CLASS B—1938 AWARD

CAPITAL BRIDGE — Across Kentucky
River at Capital Avenue, Frankfort, Ken- [k o - ——
tucky; Total Cost. $329.316.39; Engineers, iy fre ek gy
Bridge Department, Department of Highways IR : :

of Kentucky; Fabricators and Erectors. Beth-
lehem Steel Company; Owner. Common-
wealth of Kentucky; Date Completed, May
25. 1938; Opened to Traffic, June 4, 1938;
Span lengths: 3 spans at 67 ft., one continu-
ous span at 474 ft.

FIRST ' PLACE—CLASS C—1938 AWARD
MIDDLE FORK OF FLATHEAD RIVER BRIDGE-

Belton, Montana; Total Cost. $74.815.25: Engineers:
Montana Highway Department. B. J. Ornburn. Bridge
Design Engineer; Fabricators. Pittsburgh-Des Moines
Steel Company; Owner, Montana Highway Commis.
sion; Date Completed. June 10. 1938 ; Opened to Traffic,
July 2, 1938; Span lengths: 84 ft., 168 {t., 84 ft.

FIRST PLACE—MOVABLE BRIDGE
CLASS—1938 AWARD

LAFAYETTE AVENUE BRIDGE, EAST
CHANNEL. SAGINAW RIVER — Bay City,
Michigan; Total Cost. $380.000; Engineers,
Hazelet & Erdal; Fabricators. The R. C. Mahon
Company ; Owner. City of Bay City. Michigan;
Date Completed, December 5, 1938; Opened
to Traffic, December 7, 1938; Span length:
Bascule span. 185 ft.; approach spans, 96 ft.-
10 in.. and 107 {1.-8 in.
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HONORABLE MENTION—CLASS A—
1938 AWARD

" BLUEWATER BRIDGE—Over St. Clair River,
hetween Port Huron, Michigan. and Sarnia,
Ontario, Canada; Total Cost. $2.744.018.02;
Engineers: Mod jeski, Masters and Case; Cana-
dian Associate Engineers, Monsarrat and Prat-
ley; Fabricators: American Bridge Company
(Main Bridge); Wisconsin Bridge & Iron
Company (Michigan Approach) ; Hamilton
Bridge Company (Ontario Approach); Own-
ers: State Bridge Commission of Michigan;
Department of Highways, State of Michigan;
Department of Highways. Province of Ontario;
Date Completed. September 20.:1938; Opened
to Traffic. October 8, 1938; Span length, 871
ft. main span.

HONORABLE MENTION—CLASS B
1938 AWARD

CHAIN BRIDGE—Over Potomac River, be-
tween District of Columbia and Virginia;
Total Cost, $342.529 (superstructure) ; En.
gineers. Modjeski. Masters and Case: Fab-
ricators. Bethlehem Steel Company ; Owner,
Government of the District of Columbia; .
Date Completed and Opened to Traffic,
June 17. 1938; Span lengths: 6 at 172 ft.,

2 at 160 ft.

HONORABLE MENTION—CLASS C—
1938 AWARD

BURNHAM PARK PEDESTRIAN BRIDGE-Foot
of East 47th Street. Burnham Park, Chicago, Illinois;
Total Cost. $14.700: Engineers: Engineering Divi-
sion. Chicage Park District: Fabricators, Duffin Iron
Company: Owner, Chicago Park District; Date Com-
pleted. September 6, 1938 Opened to Traffic, Sep-
tember 17, 1938; Span length, 115 ft,

HONORABLE MENTION—CLASS C—.
1938 AWARD

THOUSAND ISLANDS INTERNATIONAL
BRIDGE—Between Constance and Georgina
Islands in the Canadian Channel of the St
Lawrence River; Total Cost, $§110.000; Engi-
neers: Robinson and Steinman. Design and
. Supervision: Monsarrat and Pratley, Associate
Engineers; William T. Field. Advisory Engi-
neer; Fabricators, Canadian Bridge Company;
Owner. The Thousand Islands Bridge Author-
ity; Date Completed and Opened to Traffic,
August 18, 1938; Span length. 348 ft. main
" span.

I e
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August 24, 1988

Mr. James A. Walsh
Division Administration
Federal Highway Administration
Transportation Systems Center
55 Broadway - 10th Floor
Cambridge, MA 02142

ATTN: Mr. H. Pearlman
RE: Bridges ....... . National Register Eligibility
Dear Mr. Walsh:

The Massachusetts Historical Commission has reviewed the historic bridge
inventory forms prepared by the Massachusetts Department of Public Works. The
MHC concurs with the preliminary finding of the MDPW that .the following
bridges appear to meet criteria for listing in the National Register of
Historical Places.

Erving/Gill E-10-14/G-4-9 St. 2, Mohawk Trail over
Connecticut River

1931 continous 3 span, spandrel braced, steel rib deck arch bridge.
Individually eligible for the National Register on the Tocal, state, and
national level;. A landmark structure in a dramatic national setting:
national prize winner in 1932. An unusual design variation on a very uncommon
structural type. One of only four known metal deck arches in Massachusetts.

Pittsfield P-10-5 B&M Railroad over Housatanic River,
- Mill St.

1897 two span continuous double-intersection with sub-verticals warren deck
truss. One of only two known bridges of this type in Massachusetts.

The Massachusetts Historical Commission disagrees with the preliminary finding
of the Massachusetts Department of Public Works that the following bridge does

not appear to meet criteria for listing in the National Register of Historic
Places.

Dudley/Webster W-12-0FF-1 Former Providence, Webster & Springfield
Railroad over French River and Providence
and Worcester Railroad

Massachusetts Historical Commission, Valerie A. Talmage, Executive Director, State Historic Preservation Officer
80 Boylston Street, Boston, Massachusetts 02116  (617) 727-8470

Office of the Secretary of State, Michael J. Connolly, Secretary
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Pre-1888 riveted wrought-iron lattice through truss. Massachusetts Historical
Commission agrees with Massachusetts Department of Public Works that much
about this bridge is unknown, and that technologically the bridge does not
meet criteria for National Register eligibility. However the bridge is the
Tast known element in Webster from Horatio N. Slater's answer to the former
monopoly of New York and New England Railroad. In the early 1880's, Rail
service in Webster was controlled by the New York and New England Railroad.
The high rates charged by the New York and New England Railroad provoked the
town's leading manufacturer, Horatio N. Slater to build his own Railroad line,
the Providence, Webster & Springfield Railroad in order to connect Webster
with the Boston and Albany Railroad system. This railroad line was important
to the development of Webster. Massachusetts Historical Commission finds this
bridge an important historical element.

MHC concurs with the preliminary findings of MDPW that the following bridges
do not appear to meet criteria for listing in the National Register of
Historic Places.

Easton E-G-1 St. 138, Washington St. over Queset Brook
Gardner G-1-5 Betty Spring Rd. over B&M Railroad
Pittsfield P-10-5A B&M Railroad yard line over Mill St.
Pittsfield P-10-16 Conrail over Housatonic River, Mill St.
Pittsfield P-10-30 East St. over Housatonic rivé}

Pittsfield P-10-63 St. 41 over Beagle Brook

Pittsfield P-10-0FF-1 B&M Railroad yard line over west branch of

Housatonic River

Southborough S$-20-15 St. 85, Cordaville Rd. over St. 9

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact William Smith of this
office.

Sincerely,

—?//7,&2 L~ 24
J;é}zVa]erie A. Talmage
Executive Director
State Historic Preservation Officer
Massachusetts Historical Commission

VAT/kh

xc: Frank Bracaglia, MDPW
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ﬁQéLQBZQéQQﬁlQ&E B-16-9/C-1-2 Cambridge St. over Charles
' River

1900-1907 (Longfellow Bridge) two hinged, arch bridge with neo-classical
details. Oldest known example of a two hinged, arch bridge in
Massachusetts. This bridge has been reviewed by the National Park Service
and was formally entered in the National Register of Historic Places on
December 22, 1978, as a contributing element in the Charles River Basin
Historic District.

Colrain C-18-8 Adamsville Rd over North River

1937 two hinged, steel rib, through arch. Good example of an uncommon
structural type in Massachusetts. Located adjacent to the potential w
National Register district of the 19th century factory village of
Griswoldville.

Charlemont/Shelburne C-5-7/5-11-3 North River Rd. over North
River

1937 (Four Mile Square bridge) two hinged, steel rib, through arch. Good
example of an uncommon structural type in Massachusetts. The
Massachusetts Historical Commission disagrees with the Massachusetts
Department of Public Works on this bridge, because it is identical to the
above bridge in Colrain (C-18-8) and both bridges meet criteria for
National Register eligibility.

Cummington C-21-2 State 9 over East Brook,
Westfield River

1939 (Dudley Manon bridge) steel box rib, half through arch. The only
known example of this structural type in Massachusetts.

Dover /Wellesley D-10-998/W-13-0 Access Rd to Elm Bank
over Charles River

1897 (Cheney bridge) three hinged, spandrel braced, steel deck arch.
Oldest example of a very uncommon structural type in Massachusetts. This
bridge has been reviewed by the National Park Services and was formally
entered in the National Register of Historic Places on July 10, 1987 as a
contributing element in the Elm Bank Estate.

Erving/Gill E-10-14/G-4-9 State 2 over Comnecticut River

1932 (French King bridge) steel three span continuous, spandrel braced
deck truss. An unusual variation of an uncommon structural type in
Massachusetts. The French King bridge was named the most beautiful steel
bridge in its class in America in 1932.

Lowell L-15-30 Broadway over Pawtucket Canal

1919 (Broadway Bridge) spandrel braced, rib deck arch. This bridge is a
very unusual structural type and is a contributing element in the Lowell
Locks and Canals Historic District, which was formally entered as a
National Register District on July 13, 1976 and as a National Historic
Landmark on December 22, 1977.
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Tyngborough ' T-9-1 State 113 over Merrimack River

1930 two hinged, steel trussed rib, through arch. A landmark structure
and a very uncommon bridge type in Massachusetts.

Waltham W-4-1 Farwell St. over Charles River

1935 (James Harold Bridge) three hinged, spandrel braced, steel deck
arch. Late example of an unusual structural type in Massachusetts with
noted art deco details. This bridge was reviewed March 20, 1991 with an
Eligible recommendation.

Winchester W-40-14 Mystic Valley Parkway
over Aberjona River

1896 three hinged, spandrel braced, steel deck arch bridge. Oldest
example of an unusual structural type. Altered by adding two welded arch
ribs between the three original arches; however, bridge is definitely a
contributing element in the Mystic Valley parkway. A National Register
nomination is currently being prepared by the Metropolitan District
Commission.

The following bridge is conditionally not eligible; review when fifty years
old. :

Gloucester G-5-17 State 128 over Annisquam River

1950 fixed steel rib, deck arch. This bridge is an unusual structural
type in Massachusetts. Awarded an honorable mention in a national bridge
design competition in 1950. This landmark bridge is in an outstanding
natural setting.

The following bridge does not appear to meet National Register criteria for
individual listing. However the bridge is located near an area that may be
historic. Further survey work is needed in order to determine the presence of
historic resources, plans for bridge replacement should take into
consideration potential impact to adjacent properties.

Huntington H-27-6 State 6, Worthington Road,
over Westfield River & P.C.
Railroad 3

/

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact William Smith of this ",
office.

Sincerely,

g B. Indentuat

ith B. McDonough
Executive Director
State Historic Preservation Officer
Massachusetts Historical Commission

JBM/WS /hl

cc: Frank Bracaglia, MDPW
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September 18, 1991

Mr. Donald E. Hammer, Acting Director
Division Administration

Federal Highway Administration
Transportation Systems Center

55 Broadway - 10th Floor

Cambridge, MA 02142

ATTN: Mr. H. Pearlman
RE: Massachusetts Bridges, National Register Eligiﬁility
Dear Mr. Fusco:

The Massachusetts Historical Commission has reviewed the historic bridge
inventory forms prepared by the Massachusetts Department of Public Works.
The Massachusetts Historical Commission concurs with the preliminary findings
of the Massachusetts Department of Public Works except where noted with
additional comments.

The following bridges meet criteria for listing in the National Register of
Historic Places.

Amesbury/Newburyport A-7-14/N-11-10 Main St. over Merrimack River
1909 (chain bridge) single span steel wire suspension bridge. This °

landmark bridge is the only known suspension bridge in the MDPW database.
MHC concurs with the previous determination of July 7, 1980 ! g

Boston/Cambridge B-16-7/C-1-4 State 2 over Charles River,
Soldiers Field Road

1928 (B.U. Bridge) two hinged, trussed rib, steel through arch bridge.
Oldest of the five known steel rib through arches in Massachusetts. This
bridge has been reviewed by the National Park Service and was formally
entered in the National Register of Historic Places on December 22, 1978
as a contributing element in the Charles River Basin Historic District.

Massachusetts Historical Commission, Judith B. McDonough, Executive Director, State Historic Preservation Officer
80 Boyiston Street, Boston, Massachusetts 02116 (617) 727-8470

Office of the Secretary of State, Michael J. Connolly, Secretary
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French King Bridge - HAER No. MA-100
Spanning the Connecticut River on State Highway 2
Erving/Gill
Franklin County
Massachusetts
PHOTOGRAPHS

WRITTEN HISTORICAL AND DESCRIPTIVE DATA

Historic American Engineering Record
National Park Service
Department of the Interior
Washington, DC 20013-7127



Location:
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HISTORIC AMERICAN ENGINEERING RECORD

FRENCH KING BRIDGE
HAER No. MA-100

Spanning the Connecticut River on State Highway 2, about six
miles east of the Town of Greenfield, between the towns of
Erving and Gill, Franklin County, Massachusetts

UTM: Millers Falls, Mass., Quad. 18/705360/4718930

1932
Riveted steel deck arch bridge

George E. Harkness, Bridge Engineer (MDPW)
Albert E. Kleinert, Jr., Asst. Structural Engineer (MDPW)

McClintic-Marshall Construction Co., Pittsburgh (steelwork)
Simpson Brothers Construction Co., Boston (substructure)

Massachusetts Department of Public Works, Boston
Vehicular highway bridge

The French King Bridge is one of four known steel deck arch
bridges in Massachusetts identified in the Massachusetts
Department of Public Works (MDPW) database, and has the
sixth longest span of all the bridges in the state under
MDPW purview. It is of engineering interest as an unusual
development of the uncommon three-span, "cantilever arch"
bridge type, in that definite reactions were jacked into its
steelwork at the conclusion of construction, resulting in a
bridge which is structurally continuous across four
supports. The bridge was the crucial link in the estab-
lishment of a safe and efficient highway, which replaced a
very dangerous section of road between Erving and
Greenfield in the early 1930s.

Documentation of the French King Bridge is part of the
Massachusetts Historic Bridge Recording Project, conducted
during the summer of 1990 under the co-sponsorship of
HABS/HAER and the Massachusetts Department of Public Works,
in cooperation with the Massachusetts Historical Commission.

Lola Bennett, HAER Historian, August 1990
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FRENCH KING BRIDGE
HAER No. MA-100

(page 2)
Description

The French King Bridge rises 135’ above the level of the Connecticut
River, and spans a narrow gorge just above the Comnecticut’s confluence with
the Millers River. The bridge itself is a 782-foot, riveted steel, three-span
continuous spandrel-braced deck arch, resting on two concrete river piers and
two concrete abutments. It has a parabolic lower chord, and a very slightly
arched upper chord, which are connected by a series of verticals and diagonals
patterned after the Pratt system. The trusses, spaced 41’ apart and divided
into thirty-four panels each, are identical and are 782'-0" long between the
end pins, and 460'-0" long between the river piers. All truss members are
built up of plates and angles, connected with lacing and tie bars. The
vertical truss members support plate girder floor beams, on top of which are
rolled I-beam stringers and a reinforced concrete deck. The deck carries a
40'-wide roadway and a 6'-wide sidewalk on the north side of the bridge. At
the piers, the trusses are fixed to steel shoes by means of huge steel pins.
At the abutment ends of the bridge, the trusses are carried on rollers
enclosed in protective steel boxes. Concrete pylons extend upward from the
abutments, above the level of the roadway, to form the portals of the bridge.
These pylons have decorative Art Deco-style paneling on their outer surfaces,
and are stepped at the top. On top of each pylon is an ornamental, Neo-
Classical, wrought iron electrolier with decorative lanterns on either side,
and an eagle on top. A decorative iron fence runs along both sides of the
deck, and is bolted to steel castings set in the concrete of the
sidewalks.(See Figure 1 and copies of original plans and historic photos in
field file.) :

The French King Legend

The French King Bridge derives its name from a natural landmark, long
known as the "French King Rock," located about a quarter-mile upstream from
the bridge. Today, only the top of the rock is visible above the surface of
the river, but in the mid-nineteenth century, prior to the construction of a
dam at Turners Falls, this rock was one of the most conspicuous landmarks in
the river, rising over 16' above the surface of the water.

Legend has it that during the French and Indian War (1754-1760), a party
of Indians led by a French officer came down the river on a scouting
expedition, their objective being to find a desirable point to launch an
attack. They arrived in the vicinity of the rock as night fell, and made camp
on the bank opposite it. The officer, wishing to make note of a fixed
location in his report, staged a ceremony christening the rock in honor of the
French king, Louis XIV. :

It is interesting to note that this legend began a chain reaction of
"French King" designations in the area, all named after a man who never set
foot on American soil. The first official designation was that of the French
King Bridge and the French King Highway, in 1932. These were followed, in the
1950s, by the French King Restaurant, the French King Motor Inn, and the
French King Bowling Alley.
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FRENCH KING BRIDGE
HAER No. MA-100

(page 3)

Massachusetts Turnpikes and the Mohawk Trail

The highway known today as the Mohawk Trail, of which the French King
Highway is part, is a section of State Highway 2 running from the Connecticut
River, just east of Greenfield, to Williamstown, on the New York State border
in the northwestern corner of Massachusetts.(See Figure 2.) This road
traverses a part of the state that is famous for its beautiful scenery and its
association with native American Indians.

Geographically, the northwest section of Massachusetts is divided by the
Hoosac Mountain Range, with the Hudson Valley to the west, and the Connecticut
Valley to the east. It was this mountain range that separated two powerful
tribes of Indians prior to the establishment of English settlements, but "the
coming together of the Indian tribes in war, and later for the purpose of
peaceful alliance, eventually resulted in [a] well defined trail over the
barrier."! Because Indian trails, as a general rule, followed the natural
grades of the landscape, they often later became roads for traders and
settlers. In the case of the Mohawk Trail, at least two early roads have been
documented that followed on, or near, the course of the old Indian path--the
first, a rough foot path, marked out by Elisha Hawley in 1753; the second, a
road laid out by Samuel Rice in 1764.2 After the close of the Revolutionary
War, "to meet the exigencies of increasing business and population, and the
general poverty of the towns and counties,"3 the establishment of privately-
owned "turnpikes" became commonplace.(See Figure 3.)

Chartered March 8, 1797, the Second Massachusetts Turnpike was
authorized to build "from the west line of Charlemont, in the county of
Hampshire, to the west foot of Hoosuck (sic) Mountain in Adams, in the county
of Bershire."® This route over Hoosac Mountain followed approximately the
line of the old Indian trail. Three years later, the General Court of
Massachusetts granted a charter to the proprietors of The Fifth Massachusetts
Turnpike, authorizing them to lay out a toll road from Greenfield and
Northfield to Leominster. This road, "the most extensive and ambitious
project sanctioned by the state,"? was the first road to open a direct line
from east to west across Massachusetts. A few years later, in 1802, a group
of men from Greenfield chartered The Fourteenth Massachusetts Turnpike, to
complete the section of turnpikes from Boston to the Hudson River, essentially
by connecting the Fifth Massachusetts Turnpike with the Second Massachusetts
Turnpike. Apparently, however, the promoters ran out of money fairly early in
the project, as the road was constructed only as far as Shelburne and never
completed.® Eventually, the other turnpike corporations dissolved, and the
roads were turned over to the counties as free roads.

Although these roads were seldom repaired, and journeys on them were
long and often fraught with peril, they served their intended purpose through
the nineteenth century. Shortly after the turn-of-the-century and the advent
of the automobile, the inadequacies of the old roads for motorized vehicles
became evident, and the Massachusetts Highway Commission made plans to improve
all the state's roads, including the section of highway from Greenfield to
North Adams. Work was begun in September of 1912 and completed in November of
1914, at a cost of $350,OOO.7 At the opening ceremonies, October 24, 1914,
the highway was officially dedicated as "The Mohawk Trail," after the Mohawk
Indians of that region.
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The Erving-Greenfield Cutoff

Other smaller sections of highway throughout the state were improved in
the ensuing years, but political and economic events precluded the planning of
projects on such a large scale as the Mohawk Trail project. In the early
1920s, the Massachusetts Department of Public Works was formed under Governor
Calvin Coolidge’s administration. Among their first priorities was the
elimination of dangerous sections of highway throughout the state, the section
of road between Erving and Greenfield being one of them. This circuitous
section of highway, which wound its way through the villages of Millers Falls
and Turners Falls in Montague, and had become seriously inadequate for the
needs of an increasing volume of heavier and faster vehicles. A state highway
engineer of the 1930s described this seven-mile section of road as follows:

The old highway, beginning a little east of Millers Falls and
proceeding west, is on a steep grade with a right angle turn part
way down the hill where there is a blind grade crossing of the
Central Vermont Railroad. A few hundred feet beyond is a second
right angle turn with a narrow bridge only 15 feet wide, over
Millers River, leading into the village of Millers Falls, with a
third right angle turn and a 9 per cent grade leading out of the
village. Beyond this point, the alignment and grade of the road
is reasonably good until we reach the village of Turners Falls,
where the road descends on a 7 per cent grade with a sharp turn at
the foot of the grade, and a few hundred feet beyond a right angle
turn with a sharp descent, another right angle turn, then over the
canal on a narrow bridge with a railroad crossing just beyond,
thence over the Connecticut River on the old suspension bridge
with a roadway only 18 feet wide, at the end of which is a very
dangerous right angle turn and a long steep grade uphill into
Greenfield."®(See Figure 4.)

Department of Public Works engineers studied a number of plans to
eliminate these hazards, most of them aimed at using as much of the existing
highway as possible, but eventually each proposal was determined to be
unsuitable for one reason or another. Ultimately, it became clear that the
only sensible plan was to eliminate the entire route through Millers Falls and
Turners Falls, and build a new section of highway between Erving and
Greenfield. The major obstacle in this plan was bridging the Connecticut
River at a point above Turners Falls, a less-than-ideal location because of
the steep, 150-foot banks on either side of the river. After looking at
several plans, the engineers decided to cross the river with a bridge at the
height of the hills on either side, about 135 feet above the water. When
completed, the entire project would include the construction of about six
miles of new state highway, a highway grade separation, a bridge over the
Central Vermont Railroad and the construction of a large steel arch bridge
over the Connecticut River.?

The Erving-Greenfield cutoff project was one of a considerable number of
highway projects undertaken by the state in the early 1930s. Most of these
projects, including the Erving-Greenfield cutoff, received funding under the
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Federal Emergency Relief and Construction Act of 1930, which provided public
works jobs for the unemployed. Additional funding was provided by Chapter 122
of the 1931 Acts of Massachusetts, which increased the gasoline tax and
provided "a program for the acceleration of state highway and building
construction, in order to alleviate the present unemployment emergency."1°
Under this act, the Department of Public Works launched a major road-building
program throughout the state, constructing over 585 miles of new highway and
reconstructing 383 miles of old highway, between 1930 and 1933.1

During the summer of 1931, the contracts for the Erving-Greenfield
cutoff were awarded to Kelleher Corporation of Montague, Massachusetts (for
the western section, from Greenfield to the Connecticut River) and to Lawton
Construction Company of Providence, Rhode Island (for the eastern section,
from the Connecticut River to the road to Millers Falls, just east of the road
to Northfield, now Highway 63). Work on these two contracts commenced
immediately, and the highway was completed in July of 1932.

The French King Bridge

George E. Harkness, an engineer at the Massachusetts Department of
Public Works in Boston, drew up the plans for the bridge over the Connecticut
River. These were completed in August, and later revised in October.(See
Figure 5, and copies of plans in field file.) Albert E. Kleinert, Assistant
Structural Engineer at the Massachusetts Department of Public Works in 1931,
stated that in selecting the type of bridge to be erected on the chosen site,
there were a number of governing factors: 1.The level of the new road was to
be carried across the gorge at the height of the surrounding hills, an
elevation of about 135 feet above the water. 2.The banks on either side of
the river were high and steep, and a road had been built into the east bank at
a grade approximately 30 feet above the water level. 3.Rock, suitable for the
foundations, was found within a few feet of the surface of the ground. 4 .The
bottom of the river was uneven and rocky, and the depth of the water varied,
being 34 feet at the deepest point. 5.The river was comparatively narrow at
this location, and any reduction in the waterway was prohibited because the
river was used as a source of hydro-electric power'?, "With these conditions
in mind," Kleinert said,

the endeavor was made to develop a bridge which not only fitted
the site, but which could be erected by cantilever construction,
since the deep water, rocky river bed, and the swift current
discouraged the use of falsework in the river. The result of our
studies is a steel deck structure, continuous over four supports,
two of which are abutments placed at the ends of the bridge, high
on the banks, and the other two are piers placed at the edges of
the river. ...In naming the type of this structure we have used
the term "steel continuous spandrel braced arch,” because it is a
steel spandrel braced arch between the piers, and is continuous to
each abutment where it receives vertical support.13
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Construction

On September 1, the substructure contract for the abutments, pylons and
piers, was awarded to Simpson Brothers of Boston, for $102,262, and work
commenced immediately. Kleinert states that the contractors experienced "no
unusual difficulty" in executing their contract. Nearly all the excavation
work was done above the level of the water, and involved the removal of only a
few feet of earth. The pouring of the concrete and placing of reinforcing
steel occurred simultaneously on both sides of the river. "With exceptional
speedﬁfnd efficiency," the contractor completed the project in January of
1932.

Bids for the superstructure were opened October 27, 1931. McClintiec-
Marshall Construction Company, of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, received the
contract on November 10, being the low bidder at $256,910.30. Under the
direction of H.G. Reynolds, foreman for the McClintic-Marshall Company, work
on the superstructure began in April of 1932, at the Erving (east) side of the
river. The shore spans were built upon falsework, made up of some steel
members from the Gill end of the bridge. After the steel at the piers had
been placed, the erection proceeded by cantilevering out over the river, with
the ends of the trusses tied down at the abutments.(See Figures 6-8.) The
individual steel members were moved into place by means of a derrick with a
75-foot boom attached. This derrick, carried on a wheeled framework, ran
along a track laid on a plank platform on top of the stringers. Trucks,
hauling the steel from the freight yard at the Boston & Maine station at Mount
Hermon, drove right out onto the bridge to the derrick, at which point the
steel was unloaded and placed into position in the bridge, "thereby
eliminating all storage and rehandling at the site of the work. 13
Construction proceeded steadily, two panels at a time. The local communities,
of course, observed all of this with great anticipation. On May 4, the
Greenfield newspaper reported:

The new bridge at the French King rapids is attracting the
attention of local people and many Northfield people are making
trips to view the erection of the steel now going on. The work is
being done on the Erving side of the river and steel has now been
erected to a point where it is expected the pier will be reached
Wednesday.

The bridge, which is of cantilever construction will be
built out on the Erving side to the middle of the river which will
probably take until June 1, according to Henry Hazzard, the
engineer in charge. Work will then be begun on the Gill side and
when the two sides have been built out to the middle of the river
they will be joined. This will be the climax and the moment of
greatest interest in the process of erecting the bridge.

The work is to be completed before Sept. 15 but with
favorable conditions it may be finished sooner. Thirty skilled
steel workers are now at work on the bridge and riveting began on
Monday.16
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By the end of May, the contractors had completed the cantilever on the
Erving side of the river, and moved their equipment to the opposite side, to
begin the second half of the erection. The Gill side of the bridge was
constructed during the month of June, and went fairly steadily, until the end
of the month when a rash of accidents occurred. While the company took every
possible precaution, including hiring a lifeguard, who stayed in a boat below
the bridge, the workers on the bridge were in almost constant danger. The
newspaper reported that one worker crushed his hand, several were injured by
falling rivets, and one riveter, Charles Spat, fell 115 feet to his death when
his wrench slipped.17

Despite injured workers and delays on account of rain, however, the
construction progressed, and on the afternoon of July 7, 1932, the two halves
of the bridge were joined in the middle, when the last chord on the arch on
the downstream side was bolted into place.(See Figure 9.) This, of course,
was the most difficult phase of construction, as the two cantilevers had to
meet precisely. The newspaper described this engineering feat as follows:

One of the most astounding feats of the construction of the
French King bridge over the Comnecticut river, yet one so ordinary
that the engineers failed to let the general public in on the
secret, was the movement Thursday of 1250 tons of steel a space of
five inches.

When the engineers set out to erect the largest and highest
bridge in the Massachusetts highway system, they planned the
Erving half to rest solidly from the beginning on its stone
abutment.

The Gill half, just completed, had a calculated deficiency
of five inches in length after the two middle panels were in
place. At the base of this span were placed powerful hydraulic
jacks and the weight and balance of the 1250 tons of steel jutting
230 feet out over the river were so nicely arranged that by
operating the jacks the end of the span could be swung up or down,
forward or back, so to make the union with the Erving side exact.

The calculations were proven exact Thursday, when engineers
from Boston and many other places saw the bridge joined and the
final sections of steel riveted into place. This operation is not
unusual in bridge building but the scale of the present
undertaking attracted the interest of many bridge builders and
structural steel men.'8(See Appendix A.)

In mid-July, shortly before the steel work was completed, the concrete
work on the deck, curbs and sidewalk was begun. This part of the construction
had been contracted to the Ward Construction Company, who sub-contracted to
the Bassett Construction Company of Needham. The newspaper described this
final phase of construction as follows:

Forms have already been made and laid for a portion of the roadway
across the bridge. A force of men is at present polishing the
pylons at the eastern entrance of the bridge. It has been decided
to erect a bronze pole of about 15 feet high on each of these
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pylons, on top of which will be a large bronze eagle and at each
side of the eagle will be a lantern of the revolutionary period
which will be lighted with electricity. The fences will be of
cast iron, four feet in height and the posts of the fence will be
of cast iron.'?(See Figures 10 and 10a.)

On July 21, the first 115 feet of the deck on the Erving side of the
bridge was poured.20 Forms for the concrete were made of plywood, in
sections 4 feet wide and 115 feet long, constructed so they would fit between
the stringers. Five panels, or 115 feet, of the deck were poured at one time,
and the pourings alternated from one end of the bridge to the other.?!
Despite a few minor setbacks, due to heavy rainfall and lack of forms for the
concrete, the contractors completed the concrete work on August 29.22 The
fence was then erected on both sides of the deck. Finally, the steel
superstructure was painted, the roadway was paved with asphalt, and the
construction of the French King Bridge was complete.(See Figures 1l and 12.)

Bridge Dedication and Celebration

During the construction of the bridge, residents of surrounding
communities formed a committee to plan a gala celebration in homnor of its
opening. There was no doubt that the festivities would be well-attended. As
the bridge neared completion, people came from all over to witness the
engineering marvel for themselves, and the Greenfield newpaper carried reports
of increasing numbers of visitors at the bridge:

(August 29)--Sunday was the banner day for visitors at the French
King bridge. The number of people visiting the bridge was the
greatest since the bridge was started and it is estimated that
over 5,000 people visited at either end of the bridge.23

(September 6)--One of the largest crowds ever counted since the
new French King bridge was started visited the bridge on Sunday
and Monday. It was estimated that a trifle over 10,000 people
viewed the structure, coming in cars representing the various
states in the Union.%

(September 12)--A check was made on Sunday of cars visiting the
French King bridge which showed that from 11 o'clock in the
forenoon until 5 o’clock in the evening there were over 1400 cars
per hour that passed over the bridge. More than half of that
number parked their cars and walked out on the bridge and viewed
the scenery both up and down the river.®

On the afternoon of September 10, 1932, with much fanfare, the French
King Bridge was officially dedicated and opened to traffic.(See Appendix B.)
A throng of 15,000 people lined the bridge and overflowed to the river banks
and fields below. "For more than two miles on either side of the bridge,
solidly parked automobiles lined the highway."26 Numerous state, county and
local officials, including Governor Joseph B. Ely, attended the ceremonies. A



concert by the Greenfield military band was
Ely and Frank E. Lyman, Commissioner of the
highlight of the day was a mile-long parade
progress, which included: a yoke of steers
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followed with speeches by Governor
Department of Public Works. The
of highway transportation

and a cart, a covered wagon, a
freight wagon, bicycles of all

kinds, automobiles of all kinds, road builder’s equipment, and road
maintenance equipment.(See Figure 13.) After the parade, there were outboard
motor races on the river, and airplane maneuvers over the bridge by the

National Guard.

The profound effect this new bridge and section of highway would have on
travelers in Massachusetts, evoked the following lines, penned by local
historian John A. Taggart, who had written an historical paper for the

souvenir program:

This is a period which has seen wonderful development in

transportation; so much so that there

is no longer an isolated

country or an isolated community. The automobile and the airship
have penetrated the former unexplored wilds of the earth. The
balloon has searched the mysterious heights of the stratosphere,
and the submarine has visited the watery depths of "Davy Jones'
locker." Who dares say that the wildest dreams of Jules Verne may

not yet come true.
The earth is girdled with steel

rails and modern highways

beckon where the legions of Caesar, Alexander and Napolean once
struggled through mire or over rock strewn heights.

We consider with pride the splendid highway system of
Massachusetts. Today we dedicate a magnificent addition to the
justly famous Mohawk Trail system. The imposing structure of
steel and concrete which here spans the Connecticut river is a
noble monument to man’s skill and ingenuity. The miles of newly
constructed highway which approach the bridge from west and east
open up a territory rich in history and replete with views which

delight the eyes.

sLet us feel assured that coming generations will appreciate
that we have builded not for ourselves alone, but also for those
who shall people this fair valley after the builders have passed

to that bourne from whence no traveler returns.

27

The bridge was given a first place award (see Appendix C.) as the most
beautiful steel bridge in its class for 1932, by the American Institute of
Steel Construction, and bears a plaque inscribed as follows:

American Institute of
Steel Construction

Annual Award of Merit
Most Beautiful Steel Bridge

Class B

1932
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Simpson Brothers Corporation

The Simpson Brothers company, under the proprietorship of G. Fred and
James Simpson, was first listed in Boston directories in 1882. Their
advertisements stated that the company did asphalt paving, including,
"Streets, Street Crossings, Carriage Ways, Side Walks and Private Walks,
Floors in Breweries, Stables, Basements and Laundries of Private Dwellings,
Warehouses, Mills, Rinks and Manufactories of every description."28 The
advertisements indicate that at that time, asphalt was a new building material
in the United States, as it had to be imported from Europe. Business must
have been good during the early years, however, because the company was
incorporated in 1899. By the early 1900s, the company, still under the
management of G. Fred Simpson, had expanded its operation to include concrete
construction and concrete manufacturing. At some unknown point, presumably
between 1915 and 1925, the company changed hands, and Charles F. Knowlton was
elected president. A 1932 advertisement said that they were "general
contractors and builders," specializing in "reinforced concrete
construction."ZQ(See Figure 14.) During the late 1940s and the 1950s, the
company was mainly involved in road construction. The company continued to be
listed in directories through 1959.

McClintic-Marshall Construction Company

Howard Hale McClintic was born at Lewistown, Pennsylvania, April 9,
1867. His father, Robert Hofferd McClintic, was in the furniture and
undertaking business. Howard McClintic received his early education in the
public schools and went on to study civil engineering at Lehigh University.
After his graduation in 1888, McClintic was employed for a short time by a
Pittsburgh engineering firm, and subsequently was engaged by the Shiffler
Bridge Company of that same city.

When the American Bridge Company took over the Shiffler Company in 1900,
McClintic, along with college classmate Charles Donnell Marshall, went into
business for themselves. With the financial backing of Andrew and Richard
Mellon, the two men purchased an old steel plant in Pottstown, Pennsylvania,
and began to operate under the name of McClintic-Marshall Construction
Company, and "ultimately built it into one of the nation’s largest independent
steel fabricating firms."3% The company’s most well-known projects included:
the lock gates for the Panama Canal; the George Washington Bridge over the
Hudson River; the Golden Gate Bridge at San Francisco; the Ambassador Bridge
~at Detroit, Michigan; Salmon Tower and the New York Central Railroad Building
in New York; the Civic Opera House and Merchandise Mart of Chicago; and the
steel plant for the Tata Iron and Steel Co. of British India.>

By 1931, the company was valued at $64,000,000, and had plants at
Rankin, Lancaster, Carnegie and Pottstown, Pennsylvania, and at Chicago,
Buffalo and Los Angeles.*? That year, Howard McClintic retired, and the
business was acquired by the Bethlehem Steel Company for $32,000,000, although
the company retained its name and some of its directors.?® Several years
later, H.H. McClintic died in Pittsburgh, on August 5, 1938.(See Figure 15.)
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Conclusion

Since its construction in 1932, the only major repair on the bridge has
been a deck replacement in 1955. Today, the French King Bridge is in need of
a coat of paint, as well as extensive repairs to the wrought-iron railings,
the concrete pylons and walkways, and the deck. After several years of
concerted public pressure, the bridge is finally going to be repaired. The
legislature has recently passed a bill to increase the gasoline tax, in order
to fund a number of public works projects, including the rehabilitation of the
French King Bridge.

The French King Bridge is significant as one of four known steel deck
arch bridges in Massachusetts, and one of the longest spans in the state. It
is of engineering interest as an unusual development of the uncommon three-
span, "cantilever arch" bridge type, in that definite reactions were jacked
into the steelwork at the conclusion of its construction, making the bridge
structurally continuous across four supports. The bridge fabricator,
McClintic-Marshall Company of Pittsburgh, was a very significant bridge-
building firm in the early to mid-nineteenth century. The French King Bridge
was the crucial link in the establishment of a safe and efficient highway
across northern Massachusetts in the 1930s, and is a reminder of the great
strides being made in transportation technology during that period.
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Plan for elevation of French King Bridge.
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Figure 6. Photo of French King Bridge construction, 1932.
Harry W. Fay, photographer.
(Collection of Dr. Ward M. Hunting, New Salem, Massachusetts.)
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Figure 7. Historic photo of French King Bridge construction, 1932.
(Photo courtesy of The Greenficld Recorder, Greenfield, Massachusetts.)
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Photo of French King Bridege construction, 1932.

Harry W. Fay. photographer.
of Dr. Ward M. Hunting, New Salem,

Figure 8.

(Collection Massachusetts.)
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Photo of French King Bridge construction, 1932.

Harry W. Fay, photographer.
(Collection of Dr. Ward M. Hunting, New Salem, Massachusetts.)

Figure 9.
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Figure 10. Plan for French King Bridge abutments and pylons, 1931.
(Courtesy of Massachusetts Department of Public Works.)
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View of completed French King Bridge,

Figure 11.

Massachusetts.)

1932.

Greenfield,

ill abutment,

looking east from G

(Photo courtesy of The Greenfield Recorder,
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THE COMPLETED FRENCH KING BRIDGE

The graceful sweep of {he new structure that carries Route 2 over the Conneclictl is well disstuved an

this recent photograph taken from just Below where Millers river joins the Lirzer stvoom

Figure 12. View of completed French King Bridge,
looking north from Millers Falls, 1932.
y (Photo courtesy of The Greenfield Recorder, Creenfield, Massachusetts.)




French King Bridge dedication and celebration,

Harry W. Fay, photographer.
Ward M. Hunting, New Salem, Massachusetts.)

Figure 13.

(Collection of Dr.

September 10, 1932.
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APPENDIX A.
Newspaper article relating the final phase of construction

-
« %A

[
’ ‘\ ﬂ«frr}"r m qj "“-

- . .. - - - )
Pt I S g -~ - - . 3

of the French King Bridge
(The Daily Recorder-Gazette, July 8, 1932.)
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SOUVENIR PROGRAM

;f_' On the Occasion of the
- Dedication of the French King Bridge
Saturday, Sept. 10, 1932 at 2 P. M.

N
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pand concert by the Greenficld avnr Beo Seoans Hevermen ad g fekde bievele section.  four high 4
mihitary band; (On the bridac). CLegorr. Secne Groenhicld Iov { v heels: six safeties: anto section,
2 To 2 I'. AL  S~outs, Cr'dd Life oen th~ Farmolews ancients: 12 moderns.
v lagrsny iy P Melle Snu'h” l Amecrican Legion junior fifz and

i

Spraking program fon the brid?e s i ranppert Weman e club, Falvpdram corps, Amherst:  transporta-
Frapk E Lyman, comnussicner of |g.ncnp Seoul Hoversude  Come - Gion scchion: Stake Sid> Aulo Truck.

public work munt . ol Cerectl Bros., Millers Falls: Freight
Jos:ph i Ely, goveinor of the Hucatad - Coltam - Shelene Pickeup Van, Bo& M. T. Co. Haugls.
commonwealth. ferhon bt Yoie of stee: (wo - Tuiners Falls: Refrzerator Truck,
3tod DB wheeo .10 10 N Mt astet o0 G Turnbull, Greenficld: Tank

Parade ¢f  highweay transporta- i Yoke ¢! et tvo el et S CTract and Trailer, S C.of N, Y.
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temooles with county and town ol- ! Nerthifieter e e cale e No.o

Souvenir Program from the French King Bridge Dedication and Celebration,
N
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Indg.riy Travels Scenc. Greenficld [ feld lorte prenton® ¢or Notiafe W Ouikoeard motor races on the river
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FRENCH KING BRIDGE DEDICATION -- SAT. SEPT. 10, 1932,

Historical Paper Prepared

by John A.

Taggart, Historian

Location of New French

King Bridge One of His-

torical Interest --- Many Interesting Anecdotes

--- Bridge Statistics

From the dawn of history man-
kind has been concerned with prob-
lems of travel and transportation.
It has been truly sald that *“The
means and methods ¢! travel and
tiansportation are a prerequisite of
caivilization.”

We shall do well today to consider
some of the pioblems which con-
cerned those who fitst peonled this
part of our fair Connecticut valley,
from the scttled and nomad tribes
of red men to the first white men
who made us2 of its land and water
facilitics as arteries of travel and
tiansportation.

Belore the coming of white men.
this noble river around and aboive
winch we are gathered today oflered
the quickest and easiest passage-way
between thie homes of the northern
tribes and the great salt waters on

the south, hence it was the mam
noth  and  south tiavel rouic
throupgh what 1s now western Mas-
sachusctts.

In duc time a fow restless sou's
with proneering instincts  left the
somew hat inhocpitable shores of the
Atlantic waters on the east and
fated forth westward through the
unhroken forest sceking a vlace to
foand new homes.

The fertile open meadows along
the broad river which we now know
as “The Connecticut” wete a snrce
tacle which gladdened the hearls of
thie home scexers. Tnore evel tineys
had annually been burned over to
the red men until not a vestaze of
forestatien remained, and heire they
had "eultivated their corn and to-
bacco rceceqving abundant
fiom the neh alluvial soil Hese
weie Iands ready to cultivate with-
out the Ilabor of first clearime une.
broken forest and here scltlcments
were miade

The probicm  of
was a sericus once to those cariy
scitlers. The viver afforded a qu.ck
and convement facility for notth
and south travel. but to the e~«!
and west It was quite another matrer

For generations the Indians had
sclceted and adooted what to them
scemmed the mast feasible traals in
a't directions and these trails tne
carly settlers first mad~ usec of T!co
best known and most famous of
those o!d trails was ecarly known a.
the “"Mohawk™ from the fact that 1t

transportaiion

| ot

led from the home of the "Pocum-
tucks™ in this fair valley, over the
western mountain to the home of
the war-like “Mohawks ' in what wo
now know as the "Aohawk valley.”

This trail was made use of by thz
early whites as foot path, Lridle
path and post road, over which

tosled the patient ox and the sweat-
ing stage horses until we of the
picsent  generation  are  enabled
throueh tne combined eflorts and
msirumentalities of towns, counties
and the Massachusetts department
of nublic works to sce that ancient
patnaay covered by a mocern higin-
wav winch closely follows the ong-
inal traal and perpetuates its name
—The MohawK trail —enabling all to
cnjov the beautiful and mmspiring
views which o passag? cver it makes
possibice
Our forciathers saw the passing
the t1al *he bodie path and
Cpack Botee the cart path and {aiih-
Yul ¢y and the post toad with its
Poogne biess shonT o oaed siage coach.
]
1

They alin wiinesscd the cia of
steam wtnon hrourist the 1alreads
vand ceandepe crues al first but
[eventuaiiy descicped as we see them
{ todan

I Tar cenciations of thns pericd
thave «aen the coming cf the bicvele.
[the rtel’e, ear the automeie and
fthe ar i We hinoroalrp feein Line
ipres e Iveee poetoof the satl-
st oottt owhneh once dotted the ox-

gt

fpanse o e reven cecc ond noled
tthe o possrtin s of o <tearn and clec-
clreiiy as thre anotinne uower of wate:

fcraf:
et

AL v e (et D eCden stose fot

e o e e el tpair e lton we
Ve o T ot e g Tere dap of
the G-l At tee o Te teof coomng

JOf ey b We iy paint o with
’n'n(‘.' te 1 specres thigs far made
In ket ~tarementoned T preicqu-
LSEe o cove vt n

[ Thne procswtar 1ac of the writer
18 to pive tamiethung of the hislory
pPertaanes (o the tesniooy adircent
to whiil il sann he known and
spoken ¢! from Moz to Cahformn
land frcm the Canadas to the Gulf
1as the " French Kanzo bridze on the
| Motawk Trail route ™
" Wheace camce the
"Kine and to what was the name
Jenen? Tircie are several leaends
ipc.’lnnnng to the matter and like

name French

Yupon

many another matter of history we
are obliged to depend on legend for
the answer.

An immense boulder situated in
the middle of Connecticut river
about one {fourth nile above the
new French King bridge has been
known as “French King rock”
since before the memory of living
men. It was no doubt brought to
its present resting place by the
scuthward movement of a glacier in
the far distant ice-age. Its dimen-
sions have never been accurately de-
termined, but in early davs, before
the dam at Turners Falls raised the
level of the river waters, the rock
stood over 16 fect above the surface
of the water and was one of the

most conspicuous objects in  the
whole leneth of the river.
Some idea of its weight, and

powers of resistance to pressure may
be had when it is realized that dur-
ing the lifetime of those who have
been familiar with its history, the
rock has withstood the annual
movements ol ice which the spring
freshets have brought to bear upon
it: as well as the tremendous nres-
sure of many log jambs and has not
been moved from its former position
even the fractional part of an inch.

The Legend

During the French and Indian
war, a party of French and Indinns
came down the Conneclicut river on
a scouting exvedition, their object
Leing to sHy out the most desirabie
point to launch an attack at a Iater
time. The narty was under the
command of a French ofTicer. They
reached the vicinity of the rock as
the shades of night appenred. Ee-
ing of no mind to attempt the pas-
sage of the ravids just Lelow the
rock in the dark, they made camp
on the western bank copposite it.

The rock being the most conspic-
uous object which had attracied his
notice, the ofiicer wished to montion
it his report and fix it as some-
thing which might te referred to in
the future. hence he staned o cere-
mony by lighting an altar fire on its
ton. sorinkled it with the water of
the river and christenced it TMrenca
King in honor cf his soverecinn. Toce
truth of this Jeeend was vouched
for by the late Solcmon Coswell and
also the late Caleh White: two of
the last in this vicinity of the old
rivermen, who reaated the weier
withh many tales ¢f the activitres
and along Connecticut river
duting thelr rencombronce.

Not only did the carly days sce
steady though slow advance in land
facilidies for transportation. but the
river as well was made more useful
by the building of bridges. dams
and canals.

It may not be inannropriate at
this time to quotc from an historical
paper by Mr. Cnarles V/. Harzelion
of Turnecrs Falls. “For over 200
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iyears the Connecticut river was the | or sericusty Injured by ice freshetsbridge which we dedicate today. we
'ain artery of travel and transpor- before this dam of 1866 was built.”{see the old "east side” stage road
. tation between the towns and cities| Thus was closed the colorful| over which passed the Hartford to
of the ccast and nearly all the ter-|chapter in which the old locks and

| ritory embraced by its watershed in
i yermont. New Hampshire and west-
‘ ern Massachusetts.”

Naturally, the first assistance to
upon the waters of the
t river wecre the estab-
lishment of canals and locks in or-
der that the various natural falls
and rapids might be safely passed
by flat boatls SO called. For each
anal & dam must bc provided to
furnish the necessary water to oper-
ate the locks Records show that
the dam, locks and canal at Waind-
gor Locils waie bwuilt in 1823 Those
a: South Hadley wecic bulit
epencd in 1393 The Tuineis Falis
foxks and canals were onencd for
business 1n 1798 and those ot Bel-
Jjows Falls m 1802

Tacte was also a canal with one
lock at “Fiench IKing rapids.” It
bezan at French King rock and
encded at a noint just below the
mouth of Milters river where the
dam to fuinish water for the lock
was located. The canal was located
on the Gill side of the niver and at
a point near where the lately con-
structed French King bridge spans
the river. a house was constructed
to accommodate the lock tender.
That house hasscmelimes been nus-
takenly calted a hotel The hote!
was on the opposite side of the river
and was for many ycars known as
The Durkec tavern of which moie
anon.

Q-oting further from Mr Hnzel-
ton's narrative it appears that after
the oncimne of the canals at Tu-
ners Falls and French King rapids.
“For the next forty or filly vears a
very prosnerous busimcss  was car-
ried on. but in 184G. when the Con-
necticut river railroad was built to

i navigation
. Connecticu

Greenficld, and beuan the transpot-

taticn of trave! and merchandisc,
the bitsiness of the cannls ve~y rap-
fdly d.mmnshcd, until they did not
pay for their oucralicn. the last
boat goina through the Jocks in 1836
Frem that tunc until 1865, the old
can's were going to decay as o
their lozkis and dams, and the canal
beds were growing up to brush”
In 1335 the old Locks and Canal
company’s franchiuse and property
was acqiired by outs:de interesis
A new comnany. Tne Turncrs Falls
czmpoany. was organized. That com-
pany was. by act of the lcgislature.
r2eved cof the obligation to main-
tain the old canals for navigation
purposes and cmpowercd to build
and ma:ntain 2 dam for power pur-
poses. Mr. Hnzelton states. “This
dim wns the fourth to be built at
that nsint since 17937 He further
states “Timcihy M. Stouzhton harn
in 1818. and for 90 years a resident
of Riverside. smid to me that he had
seen three dams. either carricd out

and |-

canals played their parts in piver
navigaticn in this vianity.

.The present concrete dam at Tur-
ners Falls beimg much higher than
its predecessor. ralsed the level of
the river to a point well above
French King rock, submerging all
traces of the old canal and leaves
only a small portion of the French
King rock above water.

Now let us turn from the river
and note bricfly some of the im-
provements in land facilitics for
travel and transnortation in this
vicinity. .

As time went on it was cvident
that fords and fcrries could not
properly accommodate the require-
ments of east and west land trans-
portation and bridges were built at
various poimnts in this vicinity.

One of the first to shan the Con-
necticut river was at what is now
Montague City. It was situated
near the site of the present covered
bridge. It was na crude aflair of
wooden arches The flooring fol-
lowed the contour of the arches. so
that in cioxtng it. one must needs

Brattleboro stages in the long ago.
The “west side” route was through
Greenfield, Bernardston and Guil-
ford. Vt.

On the level tract just westerly of
the mouth of Millers river, stood the
famous Durkee tavern which dis-
pensed cheer to river boatmen, log
drivers, and the large traflic of the
stage road. At this hospitable in-
stitution the stage changed horses
coming and going, the drivers of the
ox and horse drawn freight trains
“put up” for the night as did many
a horseman nnd foot-sore \vz\_vmref:
It first landlord is unknown, but its
second was Thomas Durkee. He
was landlord for &everal years and
his mantle fell unon the shoulders
of his son Jeremiah who had a long
and successful career as owner and
manager, conducting the aflairs of
the tavern in 2 manner which made
it known afar.

But the world moves on, the
march of progress may not be
staved. “One generation cometh and
another generation passeth away.”
Our forefathers left us a goodly

pursue an un And down course. neritage and made possible many of
Sametime later texact date un- the privileges which we enjoy to-
known: th:s bridge fell while Idn,\'. These beautiful, wooded hills
{dreve of cattle -vere crossing il {which adjoin the highway and
Among the cattie was n moun:c(l!bri(lze which we here dediente
horcoman wha went down wi'h the | Inoked down upon a scene of great
cattle and siranse to relate both tactivity in the faraway days of

horse and man were saved
many of the cattle were lost
Al that cariy date e on s now,
was decmied aperzopniate to coelebrats
the oneninz of A new bnidse
Inte Gro-r~ Andiens cf Mo
City told of the celcdration wh:ch
was held ar the oneming of
tbnduu he  fre~enving tbe detans

thougi  which we have written.

1

The t AN
pirouejhis frafl craft of birch

i

that:

I from the hipe o his giandiather the?

iate Elgan Atvord
\ Tnat brig e vas< reolnaced tyoan-
o'her ¢f nmicie substaniinl consirul.

tson whiCh ©ve way tn oihiere pore

vious to the corstturtian el the
preseny covered bnidee wlhisch naAar
bl “in 1867 by the jate Aaron
Ween ¢! Grernfic'd oy pinns

¢! Gieentr'e
' Frow the reeasde of the date 1A

Millers 11ies nesr 1t et bhoopeets
ably at o re1- the Gite ! the Dres.
cnt tron brrdze It oic retated thnt

safely  cross
b-id7r wnith
car: ftust n
lapsed
I With the commin? nf bridze< the
‘o‘.d care roads were hmonroved to ac-
| commedate siaces and horse and ox
draan f-cizhl wagcons

Passing bencath tne French Kan?

the  partly  fmshed
hee Peaviy loaded ox
momcnt before 1t col-

They saw
niuch which the precent generation

- "'may only sec through the cyes of

lecend and written history No more
be seen the dusky warrtor and
en bark. No
more may be heard the songs of
the old rnver boatmen as they
Noated down the river or toiled up-
ines in their cumbersome crafts.
arded LY the “white agh breeze” No

.mo.c may be heard the mellow tones

“fresh hovses in readiness.

of the coach horn as it warned the
hottlers at Durkee's tavern to have
No more

mav we of today sce the red-shivted

drawn by e Iate Joson L Card asen,

epiie-shod log driver as he balanzed
grrecfully, peavy in hand. upon the
Lieacherous floating oz and “sho!

,tue rapids” in & spirit ol bravado

man Giv~: ¢! Nosthheld Farme it
aporars that eatihv o in 1RO e nc
sisted i bkdans a0 hitpdse arnoss

Cdanzer. and
NM: G:lbest had the rood fostune tod

o- sought courageously for the elu-
<ve “kev log” in a jamb cn French
Kint rock

Taace mien of carly davs were ce-
veul ¢f all pretensc. possessed of A
<ot which knew only contempt for
a tenacity of purpose
which enabled them to hold their
own among a race of hard working
_and somctimes  hard fighting—
men. who notwithstanding their fea
vices. were possessed of an abund-
ance of these homely virtues which
we of today may well strive to emu-
Inte R

In the words of another we micht
add."Where arc ye oh fearless men?
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Where are ye today? I call, the hills
reply again that ye have passed
away.”

And so let us ring down the cur-
tawn on acts and scenes of the past,
and give our attention to the pres-

ent. This is a period which has
seen  wonderful  development in
transportation; so much so that

there ts no longer an isolated coun-
try or an isolated community. The
nutomobile and the airship have
penetrated the former unexplored
wilds of the carth. The ballooon has
scarched the mysterious heights of
the stratosphere, and the submarine
has visited the watery depths of
“Davy Jones' locker.” Who dares
say that the wildest drcams of Jules
Verne may not yet come truc.

The carth 1s girdled with stesl
ratls and modern lghways beckon
whete the legions of Caesar. Alex-
nnder and Napoleon once struggled
through nmure or over rock-strewn
heiahts.

\We consider with pride the splen-
did highway systems of Massachu-
sctts. Today we dedicate a magni-
ficent addition to the justly famous

Mohawk Trail system. The impos-
ing structure of steel and concrete
which here svans the Connecticut
river is a noble monument to man's
skill and ingenuity. The miles of
newly constructed highway which
approach the bridge from west and
east open up a territory rich in his-
tory and repiete with views which
dchght the eyes.

Let us feel assured that coming
generaticns will appreciate that we
have builded not for ourselves alone.
but also for those who shall people
this fair valley after the builders
have passed to that bourne {rom
whence no traveler returns.

Statistics

French King bridge has the unique
distinctien of being the only bridge
of its particular type in Massachu-
setts and fo far as known, the oniy
one in this country.

It was designed In the Bridge
Engineers Denartment of the Mas-
sachusetts Department of Public
Works.

During the first period of its crec-

COMMITTEE CHAIRMEN

tion it was of the cantilever type. It
remained such until its two cantj.
lever sections were joined at e
center, when it ceased to be a can.
tilever and becaine what is ternieqd
“A deck spandrel, braced arch, with
supported cantilever ends.”

Length of steel construction, 1783
feet.

Height {rom floor to mean low
water, 139 feet.

Weight of steel, 2.605 tons.

Weight of concrete floor, 2,186
tons.

Weight of bituminous floor finish,
442 tons.

Abutments contain 6500 yards of
concrete.

Width of roadway, 40 feect.
Width of sidewalk, 5 fcet.

Approximate cost of bridge and
labutment.s. $375,000.

Total cost of the whole cut-off
from Millers Falls to Greenfield in-
cluding the bridge will be approxi-
mately $950.000.
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French King Bridge HAER No. MA-100
Spanning the Connecticut River on State Highway 2

Erving-Gill

Franklin County

Massachusetts

Martin Stupich, Photographer, Summer 1990

MA-100-1 General view of east portal from roadway, looking west
MA-100-2 General view of east portal from roadway, looking west
MA-100-3 Detail of concrete railing and pylon with wrought iron electrolier

at northeast corner of span, looking northwest

MA-100-4 Detail of wrought iron railing and builder’'s plate at northeast
corner of span, looking northeast

MA-100-5 Detail of A.I.S.C. award plaque on south face of northeast pylon

MA-100-6 General view of west portal from north sidewalk, looking southeast
MA-100-7 General view of span from downstream, looking northwest

MA-100-8 Detail of west end of span from downstream, looking northwest
MA-100-9 Detail of east end of span, showing truss geometry, looking north

MA-100-10 General view from east river bank, showing truss geometry under
roadway, looking west

MA-100-11  General view from east river bank at southeast pier, showing truss
geometry under roadway, looking northwest

MA-100-12 Detail from east river bank, showing east abutment and pylons and
truss geometry under roadway, looking upward and northeast
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